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Air Photo of Brunswick site – April 1997 
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0 R D I N A N C E
OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

N o ./îF,3
OF THE COUNTY OF NEVADA

AN ORDINANCE AM ENDING SECTION L-II 3 ...6 u-y CHAPTER HA-LAND JJSE YYDDED LOPMENT CODE OF TTIE NEVADA COUNTY CO
=DE TO ESTABLISH OM 1-

SPH ZONINGX CLUDGG DEVELOPMENT STANDARDV FOR PROPERTYOWNED BY SIERM  PACW C INDUSTRIES (Z93-004)

THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE COUNW  OF XEVADA,
STATE OF CM ZWORNW  ORDM NS AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1:

Article L-ll of the Code of the County of Nevada, California, is hereby amended to
provide as follows:

Section L-ll 36.7, Boundary Establishment by Description, by the adoption of an
amendment to Zoning District Map No. #53, as shown on Exhibit ''B'' attached and made a part
of this Ordinance. Said property contains 79.9 acres (total) and is located at the corner of
Bnmswick Road and East Bennett Street (Bohemia Mill site), Cyrass Valley.

Al1 that certain territory shall be, and the same is hereby rezoned from V11'' and
''MI-SP'' to establish an ''MI-SP'' Zoning Districq including development standards attached
hereto as Exbibit ''A'', for the 79.9 acres (total) pazcel, as delined in Chapler 11 of the Land Use
and Development Code, of the County of Nevadw Californiw as amended, and hereby becomes
subject to tlle restrictions set fol'th herein.



SECTION II:

This Ordhlance shall take elect and be in force at the expiration of thirty (30) days
f'rom and after its passage, and it shall become operative on the 17th day of

February .. 1994, and before the expiration of ffteen (15) days after its passage it
shall be published once, with the nnmes of the Supervisors voting for and against same in the
Union, a newspaper of general oirculation printed and published in the County of Nevada.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board cf Supervi sors of the County of Nevada at a regular

meeti ng of sai d Board , held on the 18th day Of January , 19 94 ,
by the f ol 1 oWI ng vote of s ai d Board : Ayes: supervksors pave Tobi assen 

, Karen Knecht ,
Jim $ei r, Bi 1 1 Schultz , R- H . Drake .

Nces: None .
ATTEST; Absent: None 

.CATHY R. THOMPSON
Abstain: None .clerk Iae Bocr.d-o zf Su e' sors
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''MASTER DESIGN THEME''

The central theme behind the Nevada County Business and
Industrial Center is a coordinated infrastructure plan with
preapproved design guidelines. While there are three separate
land use categories proposed in the Master Plan the basic theme
is to provide consistent design. To accomplish this goalr
standards for acceptable design must be established to provide
the guidelines needed. The architectural style of the building
and overall landscapin: of the center is the central component of
the design theme. The basic purpose is to create a utility
oriented atmosphere in a wooded setting while recognizing
economic necessity. Emphasis shall be placed on buildings having
variable roof lines with related earth tone colors and a overall
pine tree canopy. The following is an outline of the minimum
standards reqommended to achieve design consistency for the
overall development:

BUILDINGS:

The setback requirements in the Land Use and Development
Code for the Light Manufacturing and Industrial Zoning
District shall apply to a11 property lines and roadways
within this development plan.

2. Buildings shall be separated by a minimum distance of 30
feet.

Buildings in excess of 10r000 square feet shall have
staggered walls or variatzon in footprint to break up long
undivided surfaces. Building deviations shall take place
every 100 feet. In addition: extended roof overhangs and
window arrangements can be used to avoid long monotonous
structures.

4. Building heights are set forth within each building envelope
and shall not exceed the maximum height set forth in the
Light Manufacturing and Industrial designation of the
County's Land Use and Development Code. Building height
shall vary to promote variation in roof lines. Flat roofs
should be avoided.

7,-. .y., yy j s j y
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Building Materials: Exterior building walls may be of tilt
up concrete? textured concretez brick or stone masonry,
ornamental concrete block, wood, stucco or flushed metal
panels. Sheet? ribbed, or corrugated metal panels or
prefabricated buildings should be discouraged in areas that
are highly visible to thë-köàdway unless landscaping or
other architectural treatments can modify the
premanufactured look.

colors: Colors are to be light earth tones and graded
related. Bright contrasting colors shall only be used as
accents to offset specific design features.

Mechanical equipment, including air conditioning units,
utility vaults, transformers, meters and fire protection
apparatus :#4+14 be located to minimize visibility from
adjacent highways or incorporated into landscape areas to
screen equipment from view of the roadways.

8. Buildings should be designed and oriented to allow maximum
solar access and minimize heating and cooling requirements.
Where appropriate, energy conservation methods such as;
tinted windows, recessed entryways, awnings and shade
lattices shall be used.

LKNDSCAPING:

Street trees along the major roadway through the project
shall be located as to create a bordered alignment. These
trees should consist primarily of Ponderosa Pines,or similar
species. Emphasis should be placed on trees and ground
covers only. Nsp.ipgp shrubs should be planted in this area
unless associated with berms or monument signs.

Trees shall be planted in areas to simulate informal qrowth.
It is recommended that trees not be aligned in rows, but
planted in irregular groupings of at least three to seven
trees or more.

Landscaping and trees associated with front yard setbacks
and/or entryways should have a variety of plant types
including ground covers, shrubs and trees at various
heights.

8
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Use of rocks and berms should be encouraged to enhance the
architectural aspect of the buildings and provide a pleasing
entry to the structures. Planting to accent driveways or
buildinç entries should offer seasonal interest.
Landscaping around buildings may incorporate ornamental
plants but should emphasize pine trees or indigenous plant
species as the predominant plant material.

4. Parking 1ot areas should emphasize canopy tree cover to
encourage shading of the parking lot areas. Not only would
this create a shaded atmosphere but also will be visually
appealing for passing motorists using Brunswick Road and
East Bennett Street. Parking 1ot tree planting should
recognize seasonal changes. A copbination of evergreens and
deciduous trees are recoxmended. Planter areas should
emphasize trees and ground cover rather than shrubs. Thed
ominant feature in this area is to provide shade and tree
color during the various seasons.

Recommended Understory Trees: Dogwood (Cornus spp.), Multi-Trunked Strawberry tree (Arbutus unedo), Redbud (Cercis
occidentalis), Flannelbush (Fremontodendron californicum)

,Silktassel (Garrya elliptica ''James Roof'').

Recommended Tree Type: Evergreen Trees (Conifers), Ponderosa
Pine (Pinus ponderosalz Incense Cedar (Calocedrus
decurrens), Douglas Fir (Pseudotsuga menziesii), CoastRedwood (Sequoia sempervirens), Sugar Maple (Acer-
saccharum), Red Maple (Acer rubrum), London Plane Tree
(Platanus acerifolia) and Red Oak (Quercus rubrum).
Recommended Shrubs and Ground Covers: Mcminn Manzanita
(Arctostaphylos densiflora ''Howard McMinnn), Dark Star
Ceanothus or Dark Star Mountain Lilac (Ceanothus ''Dark
Star''), Western Azalea (Rhododendron occidentale), Oregon
Grape (Mahonia aquifolium), Rockrose (Cistus spp.), Creeping
Mahonia (Mahonia repens), Manzanita (Arctostaphylos uva-
ursi), Cotoneaster (Cotoneaster ''Lowfast''lr Creeping St

.Johnswort (Hypericum caleycinum).

The open space area shown on the attached plan should be
left in its natural state, except to provide adequate fire
protection. Limbing of understory vegetation, brushabatement, and other recognized abatement programs to reduce
the threat of wildland fires are encouraged in this area.

9
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0FF STM KT PARKING:

Off street parking shall be in conformance with the
specifications of Article 28 of the Nevada County Land Use
and Development Code. However, more extensive parking :ay
be needed to meet some of the uses proposed in three
separate building zones identified on the plan. In general
the parking ratios range from one space for 300 square feet
of gross floor area to one space per 2,000 square feet of
warehouse storage area. All other requirements applicable
in Article 28? shall apply to the off street ratios.

In areas with light parking lot turn over ratios turf block
may be substituted for paving. In a1l other areas paving or
concrete is the acceptable surface for off street parking.

SIGNS:

Al1 signs shall be in conformance with the provisions set forth
in the Nevada County Land Use and Development Code. However to
achieve a coordinated and well designed sign theme, the following
criteria shall be met.

Signs may be located on exterior building walls or mounted
on the ground as free standing signs in the front of the
building. One ground mounted sign for each major entry is
permitted. Maximum allowable height of a ground sign is 6
feet above the top of an adjacent curb.
Signs shall contain only the company's name, business
performed or product produced and company's logo design.

Signs shall not project above roof line of any building.
An maximum letter height for signs is 2 feet.

Letters may be illuminated by back
lights mounted on the ground. A11
directed to avoid light spill over
and/or roadways.

lighting or by floor
lkght sources shall be
to adjacent properties

Multi tenant buildings may have signs coordinated and
mounted on a single structure or frame.

10
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One such structure or frame may
vehicular entry and one located
the main entry.

be located at the main
on the buildin: adjacent to

A1l conduit transformers and other equipment shall be
screened from view from adjacent roadways.

8. Small internal 1ot directional signs are encouraged to
direct traffic and specify specific parking areas for multi
tenant buildings. Such signs may contain business or
company's logo and shall not be counted in the overall
permitted sign area.

LIGHTING:

The overall intent of lighting throughout the Business and
Industrial Center is to provide a soft lighted atmosphere that
provides necessary onsite security ànd safety, but also maintains
the rural atmosphere of the surrounding area. To achieve this
goal the following is required.

A1l outdoor lighting fixtures should be designed and
situated so that night time illumination will not become a
nuisance to the adjacent properties. Emphasis shall be
placed on lightinq entryways, ground lighting to illuminate
building walls or specific architectural features and 1ow
profile walkway lighting.

Lighting for advertising is not permitted.

Pole heiqhts should not exceed 25 feet for mercury vapor or
sodium type lighting.

A11 street and entryway lighting shall emphasize landscaped
areas or directional signs providing information on
circulation and/or specified parking areas.

NOISE :

The Nevada County Noise Element shall provide the governing
standards for maximum noise level regulation and attainment
necessary to provide compatibility with surrounding properties.

11



Development projects submitted for revilw should conteia
description of the types of uses, enttczpated noise levels, an
appropriate mitigatton to insure compatibillty with the Nevada
County Standards and the surroundtnq land uses.

AIR POLLUTIOM t

All uses.within *he Development Park shall be subject to the
regulations imposed by the gevada County Air Pollution control
District. ln eddition the followinç standards shall also applyk

The use of any materials subject to becominç airborne shall
only be permitted if it is demonstrated that no siqnificant
air pollution impects will result.

2. Refuse burning shall be prohibited.

3. Any odors which interfere with the comfort of the adjacent
residential uses and/or workers on site shall be prohibited.

HAZARX QS MA'ERTAX)

Any hazardous materials, stored or used on site shall conform to
the Hazardous Waste Disposal Standards of the Nevada County
Environmental Bealth Department. Al1 development requests within
the lndustrial Center shall be accompanied with e use description
and hazardous material manaqement plan to insure compliance with
Nevada County's Regulations. '

CIRC7LATION:

Thète will be two
of Transportation
Brunsvick Road.

STANDAFPC:

encroachment pointsy subject to County Dept.
approval: one on Bennett Streety and one on

Where the development standards proposed differ from County
standards, tbe more .resttictive standard shall apply.

:. *
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LAND USE REGULATIONS

1. BUSINESS PARK

EXISTING CONDITIONS:

The area devoted to the Business Park is located in the western
portion of the site at the intersection of East Bennett Street
and Brunswick Road. This area is 5.4 acres in size and overlooks
the existing recycling pond. Access to the Business Park section
of the development is proposed via East Bennett Street.
Currently a road does bisect this portion of the property and the
plan is to utilize the alignment of this roadway. This area of
the property is graded and was previously used for finished
lumber storage.

PLANNED PURPOSE:

This area is planned for corporate headquarters of business's
operating onsite. The intent is to provide a campus atmosphere
consisting of coordinated architectural treatment, extensive
landscaping and areas devoted for guest parking. The primary
uses in this area are intended to include office administration
and research. In additionr sales display's and meeting rooms
that can host luncheons, dlnner events and lectures. Employment
training and sales promotion associated with business activities
conducted on site are encouraged.

Secondary uses include; incidental light manufacturing for
products produced on site, ie; laboratories? service and repair,
and research facilities.

13
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DEVELOPMENT CHARACTERISTICS:

A. Lot Sizes: Flexible
B. Highway visibility: Very important.
c. Outdoor Storage: Prohibited.
D. Architectural: Corporate/campus atmosphere.
E. Traffic: Employee, Deliveries, Guest and Customer.
F. Maximum Building Height: 40 feet or 3 stories.
G. Parking Ratio: 1 parking stall per every 30Q square

feet of floor area. '
Minimum Parking Lot Landscaping Requirements: 80 square
feet of landscaping per required parking stall.
Building Intensity Ratio: 10,000 square feet per acre.

EXAMPLES OF PERMITTED USES:

A. Office and Professional
B. Administrative and Research
C. Employment Center Support:

1) Restaurants
2) Fitness Center
3) Automatic Branch Bank
4) Daycare Facilities

Sales office/showroom (Relative to products produced on
site).

E. Conference Facilities (Related to servicez training,
and lectures incidental to activities conducted on
site).
other similar type uses.

14
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II. SERVICE BUSINESS LIGHT MANUFACTURING

EXISTING CONDITIONS:

This portion of the property, approximately 18.6 acres houses the
existing mill site. The majority of the area is paved and was
used as 1og storage from the previous lumber mill activity. An
extensive water system is currently in place. This system
provided irriqation to stored logs and fire flow for the existing
mill facility. It is doubtful that any part of this systvm will
be utilized in the domestic or fire flow facilities for the new
uses. However, a complete evaluation has not taken place, so
remnants or portions of this existing system may be able to be
utilized. '

PLKNNED PURPOSE:

The purpose of the Service Business Light Manufacturing area is
to promote enough flexibility within the permitted uses to
support services and a variety of light manufacturing activities
that can service the needs of Nevada County.

Development should provide a Wide Fanqe of square footage needs
from incubator business's requiring 1,000 square feet of floor
area to large production facilities that may require 50,000 to
60,000 square feet of floor area.

The primary uses in this area will include service maintenance
and repair, manufacturing and processing, warehousing and
distribution facilities. The secondary activities would include
office, professional and conference facilities.

Outdoor storage activities are permitted, but screening and
design techniques should be incorporated to provide transition
from the corporate atmosphere of the business park area and to
minimize visual impacts from traffic on Brunswick Road and
adjacent properties.

15
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DEVELOPMENT CHARACTERISTICS:

A. Lot Sizes: Variable
B. Visibility: Is not an important criteria.
C. Outdoor Storage: Permitted (Conditioned upon design

techniques to mlnimize visual impacts on adjacent
properties and land uses).

D. Architectural Style: Utility oriented.
E. Traffic: Employee, Truck Deliveries and Customer.
F. Maximum Buildinq Height: 45 feet.
G. Parking Ratio: Varies fron 1 to 500 per gross floor

area for active uses and l to l,Q00 floor areas devoted
to warehousing and storage.
Minimum Parking Lot Landscaping Requirements: 45 square
feet of landscaping per required parking stall.
Building Intensity Ratio: 13,000 square feet per acre.

EXAMPLE OF PERMITTED USESI

A. Food Products
B. Chemical Laboratories
C. Dry Cleaning
D. Metal Fabricators
E. Wholesale Stores and Showrooms
F. Service Contractors; Including General, Plumbing,

Janitorial Roofers, Pool Installers, etc.
Service Maintenance and Repair; Including parts
distribution and repairs, small service shops,
automotive repairs such as; tune-uys, transmission
repairs, electrical appliance repaarsz business
machinery repairs: upholstery and etc.

H. Other similar type uses.

16
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111. INDUSTRIAL

EXISTING CONDITIONS:

This portion of the facility is 18.3 acres in size. It is
different in elevation than the service business area and was
previously used for excess 1og storage. This area property will
require the most intensive grading. An existing cut bank is
exposed and visible from Brunswick Road.

PLANNED PURPOSE:

The purpose and intent of this area is to provide for ldnd uses
that are site intensive. This area will allow for industrial
uses which requires a large building area, outside storagez or
combination there of. The primary purpose of this zoning
category is to allow uses that are labor intensive. Minimum
customer activity is anticipated so parking demands should be
limited to that necessary to service employees on site.

SITE DEVELOPMENT CHARACTERISTICSI

A. Lot Sizes: Flexible
B. Visibility: Is not important.
C. Outdoor Storageg Permitted, emphasis should be placed

on mitigating visual affects from Brunswick Road.
D. Architectural: Typical industrial type architectural

will be permitted in these areasf including metal, tilt
up concrete ànd other noncombustzble type structure
that allow for large spans and high door openings.

E. Traffic: Emphasis should be placed on truck
maneuvering, loading and unloading and truck storage.

F. Maximum Building Height: 45 feet
G. Parking Ratio: One space for every 800 square feet of

active floor area for active use areas and one space
for every 2,000 square feet of bulk storage area.

H. Parking Lot Landscaping Ratios: Landscape ratios should
allow 20 square feet of interior landscaping for every
required parking stall.

17
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EXAMPLES OF PERMITTED USES:

A. Moving and Storage Facilities
B. RV Repair and Storage Lots
C. Well Drilling/ Contractors Equipment and Storage Yards
D. Large Equlpment Storage and Repair
E. Auto Dismantling Yards
F. Milling and Planing Facilities
G. Lumber Yards
H. Truss Manufacturing Yards
1. Large Truck Repair and Service
J. Large Wholesaling and Distribution Facilities
K. Other Similar Type Activities
L. Recycling Center
M. HGreen Tech'' Recyclers

NwydocaN8lehspirep.pre
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STATE OF CALIFORNIA, COUNTY OF NEVADA

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MINUTES, DECEMBER 14,1993

Meeting held in the Board Chambers, Eric Rood Adrnin. Center, 950 Maidu Ave., Nevada City, CA

REGULAR MEETING: 9:00 A.M.

I. STANDING ORDERS:

Chairman Schultz called the meeting to order at 9:00 a.m.

The following Supervisors present:

Dave Tobiassen, 1st District
Karen Knecht, 2nd District
Jim Weir, 3rd District
Willard "Bill" Schultz, 4th District
Bob Drake, 5th District (Absent until 9:55 a.m., due to weather)

Pledge of Allegiance held.

Motion made by Supervisor Tobiassen, seconded by Supervisor Weir, and passed unanimously,
to approve the rrunutes of December 7, 1993.

II. DEPARTMENT HEAD MATTERS:

A. Mental Health Director: (Diane Chenoweth)

A Resolution Approving the Nevada County Mental Health Substance Abuse and ' ~'
Mental Health Services Administration (SAMHSA) Federal Block Grant Proposal
in the Amount of $19,917.

ACTION TAKEN: Ms. Diane Chenoweth, Mental Health Director, introduced the agenda item.

Motion made by Supervisor Schultz, seconded b~ Supervisor Tobiassen, to adopt Resolution 93-
600. On a roll call vote, the motion passed unanimously. (Supervisor Drake absent)

B. Health Administrator: (Gary House)

A Resolution Appointing Richard J. Burton, M.D., M.P.H., as the Public Health
Officer of Nevada County, Effective December 6, 1993.

ACTION TAKEN: Mr. Gary House, Health Administrator, introduced Dr. Rich Burton, the
new Public Health Officer, and introduced the agenda item.

Motion made by Supervisor Weir, seconded by Supervisor Knecht, to adopt Resolution 93-601.
On a roll ca11 vote, the motion passed unanimously. (Supervisor Drake absent) (See page 423).

~~x~*
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C. County Administrator: (Doug Latimer)

1. A Resolution Canceling Supplemental Appropriations and Adjusting the Adopted ~ ~/
Budget for 1993/94.

ACTION TAKEN: Ms. Dana Shigley, Administration, introduced the agenda item.

Motion made by Supervisor Weir, seconded by Supervisor Knecht, to adopt Resolution 93-602.
On a roll call vote, the motion passed unanimously. (Supervisor Drake absent)

2. A Resolution Transferring Funds for Non-Profit Contracts Totalling $87,684.

Motion made by Supervisor Weir, seconded by Supervisor Knecht, to adopt Resolution 93-603.
On a roll call vote, the motion passed unanimously. (Supervisor Drake absent)

~~*~

D. Clerk-Recorder: (Bruce Bolinger) ~F f

1. (First Reading) An Ordinance Amending Subsection II of Section A-II 1.7.a of
Chapter II, Article 1, of the Administrative Code of the County of Nevada
Pertaining to Hours of Operation of the Nevada County Recorder's Office.

ACTION TAKEN: Mr. Bruce Bolinger, Clerk Recorder, introduced the agenda item.

Mr. Jim Curtis, County Counsel, called the Board's attention to the Ordinance page under A-2
1.7a, recommending striking "located in Nevada County"; the Board accepted that change.

Mr. Curtis introduced the document into the record as a fist reading.

E. County Counsel: (James Curtis)

1. A Resolution Terminating the Mello-Roos Bond Funding for the Wildwood t~~
Estates Subdivision; Terminating the Acquisition Agreement; Making an Election
to Terminate the Arbitrage Penalties as to the Mella-Roos Bond Funds, and
Making Certain Findings and Determinations in Support Thereof.

ACTION TAKEN: Mr. James Curtis, County Counsel, introduced the agenda item, noting it
was a joint recommendation by the County Administrator and himself.

SEND CASSETTE #93-168)

He offered background information on this issue, explained the intent to terminate and discussed
the process to do same, noting there would be a one-time payment of approximately $450,000 to
the IRS to terminate the ongoing accrual of the three percent per year penalties.

Mr. Ed Ness, Bond Counsel, advised the Board that he held out for a long time for a different
position, which was to put the money in the ground and complete the improvements. However,
he was finally convinced by the evidence presented to them from more than one source that it
was a long period out there to absorb that many lots. He was pleased that the bank saw fit to
foreclose on the property and become the owner, which gfives some stability. It was too early for
them to say what they intended to do. He indicated that they had from now to March 20 to
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continue to work and see if there was a way for the bank, or someone outside the development,
to come in and do something. He supported County Counsel's recommendation.

Ms. Marguerite Leipzig, Lake Wildwood Association, understood this was probably the only
thing that could be done. She uestioned the 104 lots; i.e., would the buyers of the 104
individual lots be saddled with the $4.5 million remaining cost of the Mello-Roos Fund.

Mr. Curtis stated that they would be responsible for their share of the special tax that was
allocated according to the original tax formula, and it went beyond the 104 lots. He commented
that these were many issues that were yet to be resolved regarding what would happen in the
future.

Motion made by Supervisor Schultz, seconded by Supervisor Weir, to adopt Resolution 93-604.
On a roll call vote, the motion passed unanimously. (Supervisor Drake absent)

After a brief recess, the meeting reconvened.

III. COMMUNICATIONS: ;~.

1. Request by Ms. Mueller, Court Appointed Special Advocate (CASA) Board Member, for
a Letter Acknowledging Their Request for Grant Funds from the Judicial Council for
Funding of a Court Appointed Special Advocate Program.

ACTION TAKEN: Chairman Schultz introduced the agenda item.

Motion made by Supervisor Schultz, seconded by Supervisor Tobiassen, and passed
unanimously, to approve the request. (Supervisor Drake absent)

~~x~*

IV. INFORMATIONAL CORRESPONDENCE: Chairman Schultz introduced the infannational
correspondence.

A. NEVADA COUNTY COMIVIISSION ON AGING - Minutes of October 28, 1993
Meeting.

B. STATE DEPARTMENT OF WATER RESOURCES - A Letter Enclosing a Draft Copy
of Bulletin 160-93, "The California Water Plan Update" Volumes I and II, for Review
and Comment.

C. FOUNDATION CONSORTIUM FOR SCHOOL-LINKED SERVICES - Notification
that the County's Proposal to Participate in the Policy Academy for County
Collaboratives Was Not Selected.

ACTION TAKEN: All correspondence acknowledged.
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V. BOARD MEMBERS/COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR COMMITTEE UPDATE

Report by Individual Board Members and County Administrator.

Supervisor Knecht reported that she attended a Solid Waste Planning &Review Committee
meeting from 5:00 to 10:00 p.m., noting that they did complete the document. She thanked all
of the County staff that stayed and worked through the document.

Supervisor Weir reported on the Air Quality Meeting held last week. The electric car has been
delivered to the high school, and the kids have already removed the motor, etc. The darts have
been ordered and should be in a couple of weeks, with the estimated date of completion set for
May 1994. Secondly, they were looking for a spot for the compressed natural gas refueling. He
asked the status of the green barn; Mr. Doug Latimer, County Administrator, responded the
County cars are currently maintained there, noting the supplies were kept there as well.

Chairman Schultz reported that all three JPAs met last week. The $67 million in bonds have
been sold to two California investors. That money would be available for mortgages the end of
January.

(Supervisor Drake noted present at 9:55 a.m.)

VI. CLOSED SESSION: To Discuss Personnel Matters, Labor Negotiations, and Litigation
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9.

ACTION TAKEN: Mr. Doug Latimer, County Administrator, announced the need for a closec~}~
session on labor negotiations.

Chairman Schultz recessed the meeting into closed session.

At the end of the closed session, Mr. Latimer announced that the Labor Negotiation Team would
proceed as directed.

VII. SPECIAL ORDERS: 10:30 A.M.

(1) A Public Hearing to Consider the Formation of Sierra Woodlands/Lee Lane Permanent
Road Division, Consisting of Approximately 218 Acres that Will Derive Access from
Idaho-Maryland Road, to Provide Maintenance and Snow Removal Service and Levy a
Special Tax.

A Resolution Authorizing the Formation of Siena Woodlands/Lee Lane Permanent Road
Division and the Levy of a Special Tom.

ACTION TAKEN: Mr. Charley Washburn, Department of Transportation, introduced the
agenda item and reviewed the staff report. He stated that the surrounding property owners did
not appear to be interested, and suggested there was not enough support from those properties
outside the subdivision to include them in the boundary. He recommended that the Board
consider the formation, open the public hearing, take testunony from those people present, and
continue the public hearing not to exceed 30 days from now to make the final decision.

Chairman Schultz opened the public hearing.
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Mr. Ken Baker, representing the owner, agreed with staff's recommendation to put this off for 30
days. He understood that the Board was going to conduct a Study Session regarding PRDs on
January 10, and they would like to have the benefit of the knowledge gained from the Study
Session prior to proceeding with the PRD.

Mr. Tom Cembura, citizen, stated his property accessed Idaho-Maryland and has no access off
Lee Lane. He did not want his property to be included in the assessment, nor did he feel any
other property outside the development should be assessed.

Supervisor Weir stated that the Department of Transportation recommended excluding Mr.
Cernbura's property.

Mr. Ken Goeppner, resident off Lee Lane, objected to PRDs in general. The funds that were
collected were put into an account, and the maintenance was performed by County crews. The
participants would have no say as to how funds were spent; i.e., they could not fire the County if
they were dissatisfied with the service.

Chairman Schultz indicated that the residents would determine the level of service for the road,
then the County would perform that level of service.

Mr. Washburn reported that the County, b~ accepting the roadway into the County :maintained
system, would be required to establish a m~mmum level of service, which would be Imposed on
the property owners in the area. Anything beyond that minimum level of service would be
entirely up to the property owners.

Supervisor Knecht questioned the difference between a CSA and a PRD; Mr. Washburn
responded.

Mr. Tom Miller, Director of Transportation, stated that the recommended PRD boundaries had
been drawn down to only the subdivision being discussed and not to encompass any other
private holdings. He reiterated that Mr. Goeppner s property was not included.

Supervisor Drake believed that anyone being impacted by this should be noticed an the Study
Session item; Mr. Miller indicated that could be done.

Ms. Theresa Banko, property owner on Climbing Way, wished to clarify that those people
outside the subdivision were not to be included in the PRD.

Supervisor Weir stated that the Board seemed to be going along with that. If the public hearing
was continued, any action could be taken at a future heanng. As it stands right now, it would
only involve the subdivisions

Mr. Miller stated that he would provide notice of the Study Session and of the continued Board
hearing on this PRD.

Chairman Schultz announced that the public hearing was continued to January 11, 1994 at 10:30
a.m.
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(2) A Public Hearing to Consider the Formation of West Hacienda Drive Permanent Road ;1
Division, Consisting of 11 Acres that Will Derive Access from Magnolia Road, to
Provide Road Maintenance Services.

ACTION TAKEN: Mr. Charley Washburn, Department of Transportation, introduced the
agenda item and reviewed the staff report. He explained that the maintenance services would
stand inactive until such time as other properties annex to this or until there were other property
owners that initiate an action to initiate the services.

Chairman Schultz opened the public hearing.

Mr. Ken Baker, representing the owner, stated that Mr. Washburn's statement did not mean that
the roads would not be maintained because there was a supplemental condition within the
Conditions of Approval of the tentative map that a Homeowner's Road Maintenance Agreement
be formed. The culdesac street of the development would be maintained by those lot owners.
They would not be maintaining in consortium with the other people, less Hacienda Drive, until
the entire district was formed.

There being no further testimony, Chairman Schultz closed the public hearing.

####

A Resolution Authorizing the Formation of West Hacienda Drive Permanent Road ,
Division.

ACTION TAKEN: Motion made by Supervisor Knecht, seconded by Supervisor Weir, to adopt
Resolution 93-605. On a roll ca11 vote, the motion passed unanimously.

DEPARTMENT HEAD MATTERS:

B. Health Administrator: (Gary House)

1. A Resolution Appointing Richard J. Burton, M.D., M.P.H., as the Public Health
Officer of Nevada County, Effective December 6, 1993.

ACTION TAKEN: Motion made by Supervisor Weir, seconded by Supervisor Tobiassen, and
passed unanimously, to reconsider the motion to appoint the new Health Officer.

Motion made by Supervisor Weir, seconded by Supervisor Tobiassen, to adopt Resolution 93-
601. On a roll call vote, the motion passed unanimously.

E~~~3

VIII. PUBLIC COMMENT:

Mr. Ed Tellum, citizen, wished to discuss locked gates on public right-of-ways; specifically Oak ~'
Drive. He explained that Oak Drive left Highway 49 at Cherry Creek, crossed over Buck
Mountain, and into the culdesac at Shannon Way in Alta. Siena. He stated that was no longer ~~
accessible, noting that the road had been open at least 60 years. Anew person built a house in
the area and before the cement was dry he put up a gate across the ditch, the road and put up two
no trespassing signs. Because the neighbors would not cooperate with him in keeping the gate
closed, he moved it to the other side of his driveway. Another individual on East Lime Kiln
asked for a key to the gate because he brought his children up to catch the bus on Shannon. He
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was told that he was lucky he was allowed to walk through that area. He believed it was an
illegal gate and wanted to know who would tell this individual to take the gate down.

Chairman Schultz noted that the Board could not comment on issues discussed during public
carnment.

Supervisor Weir suggested that this issue be placed on a Study Session and develop a policy to
determine whether the County would or would not take these cases to court.

Chairman Schultz agreed that was a good idea.

Recess for Lunch: Chairman Schultz recessed the meeting at 11:35 a.m.

AFTERNOON SESSION 1:30 P.M. Chairman Schultz called the meeting to order at 1:30 p.m., all
Supervisors noted present.
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BOARD OF SUPERVISORS ADDENDUM AGENDA - December 14, 1993
PLANNIl~tG DEPARTMENT
SUPERVISORIAL DISTRICT: III

Time: 1:30 p.m. f Sierra PaciFc Indushzes ~~~
J/~7✓—v v7~ liL/J7J—v7l+/ Lv uuu Vv cuau iaiv~saa7 ~iav vi vvaaavaivaa~ ia.~~aav~ ava

"M1" Industrial zoned property, located at the corner of Brunswick Road and
East Bennett Street (Bohemia Mill site. Grass Valley. The addition will be to
modify development standards for this property.

ATTACHMENTS: 1. Proposed Zoning Ordinance, with proposed standards attached as
Exhibit "A"

2. Adopted Negative Declaration
3. Memo for County Counsel
4. Planning Commission staff report, excluding the Negative

Declaration

Proposal

The item before your Board is the Planning Commission's recommendation to approve a rezone
application for property at the southwest corner of Bennett Street and Brunswick Road. The
commission's recommendation came at the conclusion of their November 10 public hearing on the
request for "SP" zoning on the old Bohemia Mill site.

If approved, the rezone would remove the restrictions under the current "SP" designation on the
site, and clarify with the new "SP" zoning that the County does not intend to restrict the site to a
mill use. As a result, it would also show that the County prefers some type of mv~ed
industriaUbusiness park uses. Furthermore, it would include development standards for any
development application on the site.

Back round

The proposed standards are attached as Exhibit "A" to the proposed Ordinance (Attachment "1").
They are consistent with the County standards, except for areas of parking and landscaping,
where the commission required that they be amended to conform to our standards.

An approval does not carry with it any project approvals or entitlements, since the applicant has
not applied for a specific project. Their objective is more fundamental than that: they seek the
County's agreement that uses such as those contemplated, with the proposed standards (as
modified by the Commission), would be considered appropriate for this site.

In recommending approval, the commission made the following finding to make clear that there

are definite limits to such an action:
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"The Planning Commission review and recommendation is
limited to the requested rezone adding and modifying the "SP"
Combining District to impose more restrictive site development
standards than would otherwise apply and no entitlement or
other approval is intended, or to be implied, whether as to the
conceptual plans for future industrial park use or circulation
or a sewage disposal system or otherwise. Any action beyond
the recommendation on the rezone would be premature
without a specific project and environmental review thereof to
consider."

We have attached a memo from Chief Deputy County Counsel, Hal DeGraw which provides a

more technical explanation of the limits of the proposed rezone. (See Attachment "3 ").

Other issues were presented by the application, including the concept of a sand filter septic

system, and a conceptual circulation system. But in the absence of a specific development

proposal, such as a use pernut, site plan, or subdivision map, the county can't make an assessment

of the concepts. That can occur with project applications.

The overall issues are discussed in greater detail in the attached commission staff report, and in

the commission's findings (Attachment "4").

ACTIONS FOR CONSIDERATION:

The Planning Commission recommends the Board take the following actions:

I. Review and consider the environmental document approved by the Planning Commission.

II. Amend Zoning District Ma.p #53 to modify the zoning designation for Assessors Parcel
Numbers 06-441-03, -04, -O5, & -29 & -30 from the current "M1-SP" to "M1-SP",
including standards attached to the Ordinance as E~ibit "A". Where the standards differ
from County regulations, the more restrictive will apply.

III. In approving the proposed rezone, make the following findings:

A. The request is consistent with the Industrial General Plan designation and the
existing land uses in the area.

B. The Board of Supervisor's approval is limited to the requested rezone adding and
modifying the "SP" Combining District to impose more restrictive site
development standards than would otherwise apply and no entitlement or other
approval is intended, or to be implied, whether as to the conceptual plans for
future industrial park use or circulation or a sewage disposal system or otherwise.
Any action beyond the recommendation on the rezone would be premature
without a specific project and environmental review thereof to consider.

C. The request is consistent with the adopted Mitigated Negative Declaration
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ACTION TAKEN: Mr. Bob Leggett, Assistant Planning Director, introduced the agenda item
and reviewed the staff report. He asked that the Board include in their action today a new
heading on page 12 that said, "Circulation: There will be two encroachment points subject to
County Department of Transportation and CALTRANS approval; one on Bennett Street and one
on Brunswick Road." A second area that he had not made clear and carried over into the
development standards was that were the development standards differ from County regulations,
the more restrictive would apply. This was being recommended by the Planning Commission
and staff because their standards were much higher m some respects for the internal parking and
circulation. He recommended that be added on page 12, with a new heading "Standards: Where
the development standards differ from County standards, the more restrictive standards sha11
apply." He commented on a letter received from Anne Ercolani which stated concerns regarding
parking, traffic, noise and precedence. He recommended that the Board approve 1t as
recommended by the Planning Commission, with the requested modifications. He further
advised the Board he had just received a note that CALTRANS was not involved with the
review of the encroachment sites.

Mr. Dale Creighton, representing the owner, explained the intent of Sierra Pacific to use the site
for industrial purposes.

Chairman Schultz opened the public hearing. There being no testimony, Chairman Schultz
closed the public hearing.

Supervisor Weir questioned the lighting requirements, noting that was a concern of neighboring
residents.

Motion made by Supervisor Weir, seconded by Supervisor Drake, to approve I, II and III, A, B
and C of the staff report dated December 14, 1993, and that the Board had reviewed and
considered the environmental document. On a roll call vote, the motion passed unanimously.

(First Reading) An Ordinance Amending Section L-II 36.7, Chapter II, Land Use and ~
Development Code of the Nevada County Code, to Establish "M1-SP" Zoning, Including
Development Standards, for Property Owned. by Sierra Pacific Industries (Z93-004).

ACTION TAKEN: Mr. Bob Leggett, introduced the agenda item into the record as a first
reading.

DEPARTMENT HEAD MATTERS:

C. County Administrator: (Doug Latimer)

1. A Resolution Canceling Supplemental Appropriations and Adjusting the Adopted ~
Budget for 1993/94.

ACTION TAKEN: Supervisor Weir asked if the Board would consider a reconsideration of this
issue.

Motion made by Supervisor Weir, seconded by Supervisor Drake, and passed unanimously, to
reconsider the agenda item.

Supervisor Weir stated that the airpark had been fighting for funds since its inception, and he
questioned a $13,000 item.
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Mr. Doug Latimer, County Administrator, advised the Board that all of the funds go right back
to the trust fund from whence they came.

Supervisor Knecht questioned "cancel supplemental appropriations"; Mr. Doug Latimer, County
Administrator, responded.

After a brief recess, the meeting reconvened.

OFF-AGENDA ITEM

1. A Resolution Authorizing Execution of Amendment #2 to Farmers Home Administration ~~
Sewer Grant Agreement for the North San Juan Wastewater Project in the Amount of - ~'
$87,520.00 (Tom Farrell, Director of Sanitation}

ACTION TAKEN: Ms Zelna Morrow, Department of Sanitation, stated that the issue arose
after the agenda had been published and it dealt with increasing the North San Juan Grant
application.

Mr. Jim Curtis, County Counsel, further stated that the issue must be dealt with this week.

Motion made by Supervisor Drake, seconded by Supervisor Weir, and passed unanimously, to
agendize the issue for the reasons cited.

Ms. Morrow explained that the Department of Sanitation submitted an application on September
23, 1993 for a grant increase on the North San Juan project. They were notified yesterday that it
would be considered if the Board Chairman could sign the necessary paperwork, which was a
resolution authorizing the Chairman to sign a letter of conditions included rn the Board packet.

Motion made by Supervisor Drake, seconded by Supervisor Weir, to adopt Resolution 93-606.
On a roll call vote, the motion passed unanimously.

~***

IX. ADJOURNMENT: There being no further business, Chairman Schultz adjourned the meeting
at 2:10 p.m.

(END CASSETTE #93-169
K~ ~ 1

Chairman

ATTEST:

CATHY R. THOMPSON
Clerk of the Board
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AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Shareholders of Emgold Mining Corporation

We have audited the consolidated balance sheets of Emgold Mining Corporation as at December 31, 1999 and
1998, and the consolidated statements of operations and deficit, cash flows and mineral property interests for each
of the years then ended.  These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management.  Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards.  Those standards
require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free
of material misstatement.  An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements.  An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

In our opinion, these consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Company as at December 31, 1999 and 1998 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for
each of the years then ended, in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.  As required
by the Company Act (British Columbia), we report that, in our opinion, these principles have been applied on a
consistent basis.

“PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP”
Chartered Accountants

Vancouver, Canada
April 7, 2000 (except for note 6(b) which is at
April 28, 2000)



EMGOLD MINING CORPORATION
Consolidated Balance Sheets

December 31, December 31,
1999 1998

Assets

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents $  3,584 $ 43,804
Accounts receivable 7,606 492

11,190 44,296

Mineral property interests  (note 3) 1 6,321,258
Capital assets (note 4) 109,849 153,847

$  121,040 $ 6,519,401

Liabilities

Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $  157,505 $ 239,127
Due to related parties (note 9) 207,500 272,665
Interest payable, minimum option payments (notes 3 and 7) 7,438 3,845

372,443 515,637

Convertible debenture (note 6) 580,153 506,864
Promissory notes – minimum option payments (notes 3 and 7) 250,154 129,764

1,202,750 1,152,265

Shareholders’ Equity (Deficiency)
Share capital (note 5) 16,966,359 15,926,662
Share subscriptions -- 42,500
Deficit (18,048,069) (10,602,026)

(1,081,710) 5,367,136

Going concern and nature of operations (note 1)
Contingency (note 8)
Subsequent events (notes 3, 6(b) and 8)

$ 121,040 $ 6,519,401

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

Approved by the Board

/s/Frank A. Lang /s/William J. Witte
Frank A. Lang William J. Witte
Director Director



EMGOLD MINING CORPORATION
Consolidated Statements of Operations and Deficit

Years ended December 31,
1999 1998

Expenses
Amortization $        43,998 $        59,311
Exchange (gains) losses (5,222) (3,479)
Finance expense (note 6) 83,287 43,578
Legal, accounting and audit 46,900 80,109
Management and consulting 63,658 63,577
Office and administration 150,883 228,876
Shareholder communications 76,469 88,829
Travel and conferences 4,944 6,081
Interest income (890) (3,359)

(464,027) (563,523)
Gain on disposition of abandoned mineral property -- 12,500
Write-down of mineral property interest (note 3(d)) (6,982,016) --

Loss for the year (7,446,043) (551,023)

Deficit, beginning of year (10,602,026) (10,051,003)

Deficit, end of year $(18,048,069) $(10,602,026)

Loss per share $(0.53) $(0.05)

Weighted average number of common shares outstanding 14,076,773 11,464,018

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.



EMGOLD MINING CORPORATION
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Years ended December 31,
1999 1998

Operating activities
Loss for the year $  (7,446,043) $ (551,023)
Items not affecting cash

Amortization 43,998 59,311
Finance expense 68,067 43,578
Gain on disposition of abandoned mineral property -- (12,500)

       Write-down of mineral property interest 6,982,016 --
(351,962) (460,634)

Changes in non-cash working capital
Accounts receivable (7,114) 17,880
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities, and due to related parties 335,132 254,847

(23,944) (187,907)

Financing activities
Common shares issued for cash 290,500 --
Share subscriptions -- 42,500
Option granted with convertible debenture -- 47,294
Convertible debenture, net of option granted -- 463,286

290,500 553,080

Investing activities
Mineral property interests

Acquisition costs (21,762) (76,646)
Exploration and development costs (285,014) (341,144)

Proceeds on sale of investment -- 8,932
Proceeds received on sale of abandoned mineral property -- 12,500

(306,776) (396,358)

Cash and cash equivalents
Decrease during the year (40,220) (31,185)
Balance, beginning of year 43,804 74,989

Balance, end of year $ 3,584 $ 43,804
Supplementary cash flow information (note 12)
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.



EMGOLD MINING CORPORATION
Consolidated Statements of Mineral Property Interests

Years ended December 31,
1999 1998

Acquisition costs
Balance, beginning of year $ 2,634,697 $ 2,392,154
Incurred during the year 375,745 242,543
Balance, end of year 3,010,442 2,634,697

Exploration and development costs
Consulting and engineering studies 150,659 132,143
Site activities 43,625 74,253
Property taxes 60,448 55,747
Salaries and benefits 748 50,968
Travel and accommodation 17,577 18,141
Well monitoring 11,957 9,892
Incurred during the year 285,014 341,144
Balance, beginning of year 3,686,561 3,345,417
Balance, end of year 3,971,575 3,686,561

6,982,017 6,321,258
Less: write-down (note 3(d)) 6,982,016 --
Mineral property interests $ 1 $ 6,321,258

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.



EMGOLD MINING CORPORATION
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Years ended December 31, 1999 and 1998

1. Going concern and nature of operations

Emgold Mining Corporation (the “Company”) is incorporated in the Province of British Columbia under
the Company Act (British Columbia), and its principal business activity is the exploration and
development of mineral properties.  The Company’s focus is in North America.

As at December 31, 1999, the Company had a working capital deficiency of $361,253 (1998 –
$471,341), and a deficit of $18,048,069 (1998 - $10,602,026).  The Company will require US$250,000
to maintain its properties in good standing throughout the next fiscal year in addition to ongoing general
and administration expenditures.

The Company’s ability to continue in operation is dependent on the continuing support of its creditors and
funding from related parties (note 9), and its ability to secure additional financing.  While it has been
successful in securing additional financing in the past, there can be no assurance that it will be able to do
so in the future.

These financial statements are prepared on a going-concern basis, which implies that the company will
continue realizing its assets and discharging its liabilities in the normal course of business.  Accordingly,
they do not give effect due to adjustments that would be necessary should the Company be unable to
continue as a going concern and therefore be required to realize its assets and liquidate its liabilities,
contingent obligations and commitments in other than the normal course of business and at amounts
different from those in these financial statements.

The Company is in the process of exploring its mineral property interests and has not yet determined
whether its mineral property interests contain mineral reserves that are economically recoverable.  The
Company’s continuing operations and the underlying value and recoverability of the amounts shown for
mineral property interests are entirely dependent upon the existence of economically recoverable mineral
reserves, the ability of the Company to obtain the necessary financing to complete the exploration and
development of the mineral property interests, and on future profitable production or proceeds from the
disposition of the mineral property interests.

Although the Company has taken steps to verify title to mineral properties in which it has an interest, in
accordance with industry standards for the current stage of exploration of such properties, these
procedures do not guarantee the Company’s title.  Property title may be subject to unregistered prior
agreements and non-compliance regulatory requirements.

2. Significant accounting policies

(a) Principles of consolidation

These consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly
owned United States subsidiary, Emperor Gold (US) Corp. and have been prepared in accordance
with accounting principles and practices generally accepted in Canada.  All inter-company
balances and transactions have been eliminated.

(b) Use of estimates

The presentation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting
period.  Significant areas requiring the use of management estimates include the determination
of

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)



EMGOLD MINING CORPORATION
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Years ended December 31, 1999 and 1998

(b) Use of estimates (continued)

impairment of mineral property interests and capital assets, reclamation obligations, rates for
amortization, and classification of accounts receivable between current and non-current assets.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

(c) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and highly liquid investments with maturities of less
than ninety days from the original date of acquisition.

(d) Capital assets

Capital assets are recorded at cost.  Amortization is calculated using the declining balance basis
at the rate of 20% per annum for office and exploration equipment and 30% per annum for
computer equipment.  Leasehold improvements are amortized on a straight-line basis over five
years.

(e) Fair value of financial instruments

The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable and
accrued liabilities, amounts due to related parties and interest payable approximate fair value due
to their short-term nature.

(f) Mineral property interests

Mineral property acquisition costs and exploration and development costs are deferred until the
property to which they relate is placed into production, sold, allowed to lapse or abandoned.
These costs will be amortized over the estimated life of the property following commencement
of commercial production or written off if the property is sold, allowed to lapse or abandoned.

Mineral property acquisition costs include cash expenses at cost and the fair market value of
common shares, based on the trading price of the shares, issued for mineral property interests
pursuant to the terms of the related property agreements.  Payments relating to a property
acquired under an option or joint venture agreement, where payments are made at the sole
discretion of the Company, are recorded as mineral property costs upon payment.

The amount shown for mineral property interests represents costs incurred to date and the fair
market value of common shares issued and does not necessarily reflect present or future value.

Administrative expenditures are expensed in the year incurred.

(g) Translation of foreign currencies

The Company’s operation in the United States is considered to be integrated for the purposes of
foreign currency translation.  Its monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the rate of
exchange at the balance sheet date, non-monetary assets and related amortization at historical
rates, and revenue and expense items at the exchange rates prevailing on transaction dates.
Foreign currency translation gains or losses are included in the consolidated statements of
operations and deficit.



EMGOLD MINING CORPORATION
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Years ended December 31, 1999 and 1998

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(g) Translation of foreign currencies (continued)

Exchange gains and losses relating to the translation of foreign currency denominated items that
have a fixed life extending beyond the following year are deferred and amortized to earnings over
the remaining life of the monetary items on a straight-line basis.

(h) Loss per common share

Loss per common share is computed using the weighted average number of shares outstanding
during the year.  Fully diluted loss per share has not been presented, as the exercise of options
and warrants and the conversion of convertible debentures would be anti-dilutive.

 (i) Share option plan

The Company from time to time issues share purchase options as described in note 5(b).  No
compensation expense is recognized for this plan when shares or share purchase options are
issued.  Consideration for shares issued on exercise of share purchase options is credited to
share capital.

3. Mineral property interests

The cumulative costs of the Company’s interest in mineral properties owned, leased or under option,
consist of the following:

Acquisition
Costs

Deferred
Exploratio

n

Write-
down of
Mineral
property

1999
Total Costs

1998
Total Costs

Idaho-Maryland Property,
California $3,010,442 $3,971,575 $(6,982,016

)
$             1 $6,321,258

Idaho-Maryland property, California

(a) The Company holds a mining lease and an option, as amended, to purchase the Idaho-Maryland
Mine, Grass Valley Mining District, California to October 17, 2004.  The lease is payable as a royalty of
between 4% and 8% of net smelter returns based on grade of ore mined with a minimum royalty of
US$100,000 per year payable monthly.  The option price to purchase the mine is US$8,000,000 net of
option payments, minimum and production royalty payments.  The option to purchase the mine is held for
consideration of US$75,000 per year, commencing August 18, 1995.  All payments are subject to
indexing based on the Consumer Price Index.

In the first amendment the Company obtained the right to defer, for up to three years, 50% to 100% of
each of the US$75,000 annual option payments due in the years 1998 to 2000 if the 30-day average gold
price during these periods does not exceed US$400 per ounce of gold.  In consideration for this
extension, the Company agreed to pay the vendors additional extension payments totalling US$200,000 in
the period



EMGOLD MINING CORPORATION
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Years ended December 31, 1999 and 1998

3. Mineral properties (continued)

October 18, 2000, to October 18, 2003, which are included as promissory notes in these financial
statements.  The extension payments are not to be included as a credit against the original US$8,000,000
purchase price.  As at December 31, 1999, the Company has accrued $257,592 for the 1998 and 1999
annual option payments and interest.

The second amendment defers the monthly minimum royalty payments for up to two years dependent
upon the price of gold.  In lieu of payments for the period March 1998 to February 1999, the Company
executed a promissory note bearing interest at 8% per annum, payable monthly, in the amount of
US$113,136.  This note was forgiven since the 30-day average gold price preceding February 18, 1999,
was less than US$300 per ounce.  During the second year of the amendment, in lieu of the monthly
minimum royalty payments, for the period March 1999 to February 2000, the Company executed a
promissory note bearing interest at 8% per annum payable monthly, in the amount of US$116,538.  This
amount, including any accrued interest, became due and payable on February 17, 2000, but was forgiven
since the 30-day average gold price preceding February 17, 2000, was less than US$300 per ounce.
Accordingly, the promissory note has not been recorded in the financial statements at December 31,
1999.

If at any time during the second year of the second amendment, the Company should raise a cumulative
total of US$10 million, the minimum royalty payments would become payable regardless of the price of
gold at that time.  In fiscal 2000, minimum royalty payments of US$3,000 will be made for the period
February 2000 to September 2000.  In October 2000 the Company will commence making the original
royalty payments as stated in the original agreement.

(b) Until December 31, 1999, the Company held a lease and option to purchase on an adjoining 80-
acre parcel of land.  The purchase price was US$2,000,000 less lease payments paid.  The Company made
lease payments of US$600,000 to December 31, 1998, and received an extension on the remaining
US$1,400,000 option payment to September 10, 2000.  In return for the extension, the Company agreed
to pay interest at the rate of 8% per annum payable quarterly on the outstanding payment and the Company
has agreed to issue the owners a series of bonus warrants to acquire common shares of the Company
(note 5(d)).  The vendor also agreed to accept 224,000 common shares of the Company for the quarterly
interest payments due up to and including March 10, 1998 (note 5(a)).  In the event the Company should
raise between US$3 million and US$10 million during the term of the amendment, the Company would
apply 20% of the funds raised against the final payment outstanding.

Effective December 1, 1998, the Company, in an effort to conserve cash, signed an additional amendment
to the original agreement changing the payment date for the final US$1,400,000 option payment to
December 10, 1999, and cancelling the US$28,000 quarterly interest payments payable by the Company
after June 10, 1998.  As compensation for the amendment, the vendor received one million common
shares (note 5(a)).  Subsequent to the 1999 fiscal year-end, the Company completed a revised license
agreement for the continued rental of the mill site and buildings for a term to run from February 1, 2000,
to February 1, 2001, at US$1,500 per month, and the original lease agreement as amended has been
terminated.

(c) Pursuant to an agreement dated November 8, 1996, the subsidiary acquired real property
consisting of 13.9 acres adjoining the Idaho-Maryland property in consideration for US$250,000.  This
property has been pledged as collateral for a Convertible Debenture issued by the Company (note 6).



EMGOLD MINING CORPORATION
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Years ended December 31, 1999 and 1998

3. Mineral properties (continued)

(d) Write-down of mineral property

At December 31, 1999, the Company reviewed the carrying value of the Idaho-Maryland property.  It
concluded that due to the prevailing low gold prices and uncertainties surrounding the ability of the
Company to raise the additional financing to maintain its interest and develop the property, that the
carrying value of the property may exceed its recoverable amount.  Accordingly, a write-down of
$6,982,016 was made to reduce the carrying value of the property to a nominal value of $1.

Rozan Gold Property, British Columbia

(e) Subsequent to the 1999-year end, the Company has entered into an option agreement to acquire
the rights to the Rozan Property, a gold prospect, located south of the community of Nelson in the Red
Mountain area of southeastern British Columbia.  The Company can earn a 100% interest in the property
by making stepped payments totalling $100,000 and issuing 200,000 common shares by April 1, 2006.
The first $5,000 payment will be made on regulatory approval and the first 50,000 common shares will be
issued at that time.  The property is subject to a 3% net smelter returns royalty.  The Company has the
right to purchase 66 2/3% of the royalty for the sum of $1,000,000 and has the first right of refusal to
purchase the remaining 33 1/3%.

4. Capital assets

Cost
Accumulated
amortization

Net Book Value
1999

Net Book Value
1998

Office equipment $ 51,066 $ 26,500 $ 24,566 $ 30,743
Computers 241,517 167,079 74,438 106,338
Property improvements 29,606 18,761 10,845 16,766

$ 322,189 $ 212,340 $ 109,849 $ 153,847

The original cost in 1998 was $322,189.

5. Share capital

The authorized share capital of the Company consists of 50,000,000 common shares without par value
and 50,000,000 preferred shares without par value.

(a) Common shares issued and outstanding are as follows:

Number Amount
of Shares

Balance, December 31, 1997 11,337,903 $
15,717,279

Shares issued for property interest payments at $0.72 224,000 162,089
Option granted under convertible debentures (note 6(a)) -- 47,294

Balance, December 31, 1998 11,561,903 15,926,662



EMGOLD MINING CORPORATION
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Years ended December 31, 1999 and 1998

5. Share capital  (continued)

Balance, December 31, 1998 11,561,903 15,926,662
Private placement at $0.25

net of issue costs 360,000 87,500
Property amendment at $0.23 1,000,000 230,000
Private placement at $0.25 982,000 245,500
Debt settlement at $0.19 1,301,051 247,200
Debt settlement at $0.15 1,529,980 229,497

Balance, December 31, 1999 16,734,934 $
16,966,359

There are 4,558 (1998 – 4,558) common shares held in escrow, which may not be released without the
approval of the Canadian Venture Exchange.

(b) Stock options

The Company has a fixed stock option plan for its directors and employees to acquire common shares of
the Company at a price determined by the fair market value of the shares at the date of grant.  The plan
allowed for the issue of up to 2,267,580 common shares, of which 745,080 shares are available to be
issued.  The options currently outstanding are exercisable for periods up to ten years.

No share purchase options were exercised during fiscal 1999.

The following table summarizes information about the stock options outstanding at December 31, 1999:

Options Outstanding and Exercisable
Range of Exercise

Prices
Number Outstanding at

December 31, 1999
Weighted Average

Remaining
Contractual Life

Weighted Average
Exercise Price

$0.20 10,000 2.5 years $0.200
$0.25 422,000 9.0 years $0.250
$0.30 1,090,500 3.2 years $0.300

$0.20 to $0.30 1,522,500 4.8 years $0.285

A summary of the changes in stock options for the years ended December 31, 1999 and 1998 is presented
below:

Shares Weighted Average
Exercise Price

Balance, December 31, 1997 1,967,800 *$1.859
Granted 275,000 $0.271
Cancelled (897,300) $1.751
Balance, December 31, 1998 1,345,500 $0.293
Granted 442,000 $0.250
Cancelled (265,000) $0.275
Balance, December 31, 1999 1,522,500 $0.285
*In May 1998, all outstanding options priced in excess of $0.30 were repriced to $0.30.



EMGOLD MINING CORPORATION
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Years ended December 31, 1999 and 1998

5. Share capital (continued)

(c) Share purchase warrants

As at December 31, 1999, share purchase warrants relating to the two private placements completed
during the year (note 5(a)) for 1,342,000 (1998 – 320,000) common shares were outstanding as follows:

Number of Warrants Exercise Price Expiry Date
982,000 $ 0.30 January 12, 2000
360,000 $ 0.30 March 12, 2000

1,342,000

Subsequent to year-end, the price of the warrants noted above was changed to $0.35 and the expiry term
was extended by one year to January 12, 2001, and March 12, 2001, respectively.

(d) Bonus warrants

Pursuant to an agreement amendment dated September 30, 1997, the Company has granted bonus warrants
to the owners of an 80-acre parcel of land to which the Company has a lease and option to purchase, as
compensation for extending the term of the original agreement to September 10, 2000.  The bonus
warrants
entitle the property owners to acquire a maximum of 300,000 common shares of the Company, for no
additional consideration, if the 30-day average gold price should exceed certain price levels during the
term of the amendment (note 3(b)).  As at December 31, 1999, no bonus warrants have been exercised.

6. Convertible debenture

(a) In 1998 the Company raised $510,580 by issuing a two-year convertible debenture, maturing
June 8, 2000, to the president of the Company and a company controlled by the president of the Company.
The debenture is convertible into units at an exercise price of $0.40 in year one and $0.45 in year two,
with each unit consisting of one common share and one-half common share purchase warrant.  Each whole
warrant entitles the holder to acquire one additional common share of the Company at an exercise price
of $0.50 in year one and $0.60 in year two.  The debenture bears interest at 10% per annum.  The
Company has the right to redeem the debenture at any time after December 9, 1998, by giving 30 days
notice to the debenture holders.  During this 30-day notice period, the debenture holders have the right to
convert the debenture in accordance with the terms of conversion described above.  The principal amount
and accrued interest are due at maturity.

As security for the principal sum and interest owing on the debenture, the Company has pledged by way of
a floating charge, all of its property assets and a first charge on certain of the assets held by its subsidiary.

In accordance with generally accepted accounting principles relating to the presentation of convertible
debt instruments, the convertible debentures have been split between long-term and equity components.
The debt component reflects the present value of interest and principal after factoring out the conversion
premium option value (equity component).  It is being accrued over the life of the notes to the principal
and interest amounts payable by a charge to earnings.

Based on assessment of current market conditions, the fair value of the debenture at December 31, 1999,
approximates carrying value.



EMGOLD MINING CORPORATION
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Years ended December 31, 1999 and 1998

6. Convertible debenture (continued)

(b) On April 28, 2000, the Company entered into negotiations to amend the original debenture
terms.  Under the proposed amended terms, the maturity date of the debenture will be extended to June 8,
2003.  The conversion price of the related units will be renegotiated accordingly, based on the market
price of the Company’s shares at the amended agreement date.  Finalization of the amended terms will be
subject to regulatory approval.

7. Promissory notes – minimum option payments

On August 18, 1998, the Company signed a long term promissory note in the amount of US$84,896 (Cdn
$129,764), and an additional promissory note was signed on August 18, 1999, in the amount of
US$86,823 (Cdn $120,390), for a total of US$171,719 (Cdn$250,154) at 8% interest payable annually
as consideration for the annual option payment due on the Idaho-Maryland Mine Property (note 3(a)).  Per
the terms of the amended option agreement, since the price of gold was below US$350 per ounce on the
date the option payment was due, the obligation for the option payment was deferred for three years to
August 18, 2001.

As at December 31, 1999, the Company has accrued US$5,049 (Cdn$7,438) in interest payable on the
promissory notes, which has been recorded as part of the property acquisition cost.  The Company can
make payments towards the outstanding principal and interest at any time without penalty.

8. Contingency

The Company’s wholly owned subsidiary was named as a defendant in a lawsuit filed in the Superior Court
of the County of Nevada, California, by a homeowner.  The lawsuit named several defendants including the
County, the property’s previous owner and a real estate development company.  On March 13, 2000, at the
Nevada County Superior Court a Notice of Settlement and Dismissal was obtained.  The Company will not
have to contribute any funds to settle the case.  All other defendants contributed in amounts ranging from
US$1,600 to US$11,000 and waived their litigation costs which were substantially more than those
incurred by the Company to date.  The Company has waived its costs of suit.  The settlement does not
admit any liability on the part of any of the defendants, was supervised by a judge, and will be enforceable
by the court under California law.

9. Related party transactions and balances

Services rendered by: 1999 1998

Lang Mining Corporation (a) $ 208,197 $ 253,564
Dumoulin Black (b) $ 11,481 $ 29,003
Director (c) $ US19,347 $ US27,143
Director (d) $ US72,000 $ US72,000

Balances receivable from (payable to) (e): 1999 1998

Lang Mining Corporation $ (144,281) $ (180,029)
Dumoulin Black $ (6,000) $ --
Director $ US(8,499) $ US(61,539)
Director $ US(12,835) $ US(18,000)



EMGOLD MINING CORPORATION
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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9. Related party transactions and balances (continued)

(a) Lang Mining Corporation (“LMC”) is a private company controlled by the President of the
Company.  On February 1, 1996, LMC signed an agreement to provide management services at a
rate of $5,000 per month, and to provide accounting, geological, and other services related to a
publicly traded company at cost plus 15% until February 1, 2001.  During the year, 1,422,653
common shares were issued in exchange for $254,315 in debt owing to LMC.

(b) Legal fees of $11,481 (1998 - $29,003) were paid to a law firm of which a director is a partner.
During the year, 261,500 common shares were issued in exchange for $49,685 in debt owing to
Dumoulin Black.

(c) Legal fees of US$19,347 (1998 - $27,143) were paid to a firm of which a partner is a director of
the Company’s subsidiary.

(d) A director of the Company, who is also project manager at the Idaho-Maryland property, receives
project management consulting services.  During the year, 293,500 common shares were issued
in exchange for $44,025 in debt owing.

(e) During the year, the Company issued 836,753 common shares in exchange for debt to two
private companies controlled by a director and officer of the Company and to the director and
officer of the Company directly, in exchange for cash advances made to the Company.

(f) The president of the Company and a company controlled by the president are holders of a
$510,580 convertible debenture issued by the Company (note 6).

Balances receivable and payable are included in amounts receivable and accounts payable and accrued
liabilities, respectively, on the consolidated balance sheets.  These amounts are non-interest bearing and
due on demand.

10. Income taxes

The Company has non-capital losses of approximately $3,283,000 available to offset future taxable
income in Canada, which expire between 2000 and 2006.  In addition, the subsidiary has losses available
to offset future taxable income in the United States of approximately US$3,095,000 that expire between
2009 and 2013.  The benefits of these losses carried forward have not been recognized in the financial
statements.  The Company also has an amount of approximately US$2,160,000 relating to the write-down
of its mineral properties in the United States, which has been recorded for book purposes but is not
included in the income tax losses of the subsidiary.

11. Segmented financial information

The Company has one operating segment, which is the exploration and development of mineral properties.
The Company’s mineral property interests and capital assets are located in the United States.

12. Supplementary cash flow information

During the year ended December 31, 1999, the Company adopted the recommendations of the Canadian Institute
of Chartered Accountants that pertain to the Consolidated Cash Flow Statements.  As a result, what were formerly
referred to as the “Consolidated Statements of Changes in Financial Position” were renamed “Consolidated
Statements of Cash Flows” and were revised to reflect a new format.



EMGOLD MINING CORPORATION
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Years ended December 31, 1999 and 1998

12. Supplementary cash flow information (continued)

Consequently, certain comparative numbers have been restated to comply with the current year’s
disclosure.

During the years ended December 31, 1999 and 1998, the Company conducted non-cash operating,
financing and investing activities as follows:

Operating activities 1999 1998
Shares issued for debt settlements $ (476,697) $ --

Financing activities
Shares issued for property interest payment -- 162,089
Shares issued for property agreement amendment 230,000 --
Promissory note issued for property interest payments 120,390 129,764
Accrued property interest payment – subscriptions receivable -- (129,801)
Shares issued for debt settlements 476,697 --

827,087 162,052
Investing activities

Shares issued for property interest payments -- (162,089)
Promissory note issued for property interest payments (120,390) (129,764)
Accrued property interest payments – subscriptions receivable -- 129,801
Shares issued for property agreement amendment (230,000) --

$ (350,390) $ (162,052)
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Emperor looks to revive former 
California gold producer 
POSTED BY: NORTHERN MINER STAFF DECEMBER 11, 1995  

0Share  

Except for a concrete silo and some old foundations, little is left of the huge 
Idaho-Maryland mining complex, 2.5 miles east of this small town in California’s 
Nevada Cty.  

But if Emperor Gold (VSE) has its way, the site will soon be brought back to life. 
The company hopes to revive the site, by first dewatering one of the old shafts 
and then going underground to assess the feasibility of re-opening the operation.  

In 1956, after producing some 2.4 million oz. gold from 5.5 million tons of ore 
grading 0.43 oz. per ton, the Idaho-Maryland was shut down. The closure was 
attributed to soaring wage and material costs amid a fixed gold-price 
environment (US$35 per oz. at the time).  

Among historical producers in the Grass Valley area, Idaho-Maryland ranks 
second only to the adjacent Empire mine, which produced more than 6 million 
oz. gold before closing in 1957.  

The Grass Valley-Nevada Cty. mining district is 7 miles long by 6 miles wide. 
From 1851 to 1957, lode production from the area totalled more than 13 million 
oz. gold from roughly 25 million tons of ore grading 0.52 oz. gold.  

At the Idaho-Maryland property, a review of mine records has outlined the 
presence of a significant resource, and, based on historic mining depths in the 
adjacent Empire mine, Emperor believes the resource can be expanded.  

Emperor holds a 7-year mining lease, as well as an option to buy a 100% interest 
in the Idaho-Maryland property. The lease requires minimum payments of 
US$100,000 per year and a net smelter royalty ranging from 4% to 8%, 
depending on the average head grade of future milling operations.  

Alternatively, Emperor can buy the 100% interest for US$8 million.  

To facilitate exploration at the mine site, Emperor acquired a 3-year lease and 
option-to-purchase on the nearby Brunswick mill site. The Brunswick asset 
includes 79.8 acres of surface rights (zoned industrial) and the top 200 ft. of 

http://www.northernminer.com/author/editor/
http://www.northernminer.com/news/emperor-looks-to-revive-former-california-gold-producer/1000095592/


mineral rights, as well as the Brunswick shaft, which will be used to dewater the 
mine.  

Lease payments on the Brunswick can be applied to the US$2-million purchase 
price.  

Consulting engineering firm James Askew Associates estimates that, at best, all of 
the vein volumes will be minable and that, at worst, 66% will be.  

The more optimistic estimate assumes a total resource of 7.2 million tons grading 
0.23 oz. gold, including: 256,000 tons of “measured” material grading 0.27 oz. 
gold; 473,900 tons of “indicated” material grading 0.27 oz.; and 6.5 million tons 
of “inferred” material grading 0.22 oz.  

The less optimistic projection assumes a resource of 2.4 million tons grading 0.23 
oz. gold, including: 85,400 tons of measured grading 0.27 oz.; 158,000 tons of 
indicated grading 0.27 oz.; and 2.2 million tons of inferred grading 0.22 oz.  

Previous operators found that drilling and sampling typically underestimated 
grade, owing to a high nugget effect in the ore.  

Emperor reports that gold values within the veins can be extremely erratic, 
varying from 0.05 to 89.4 oz. gold over horizontal distances of up to 10 ft. on 
strike.  

James Askew reviewed old mine records, comparing drilling and sampling results 
with actual mine head grades experienced in 1952. The firm determined that 
actual head grades were about 1.4 times higher than sampling values. Taking this 
into account, James Askew suggests the grade of the resource could be as high as 
0.32 oz. gold.  

Gold mineralization in the Idaho-Maryland mine is hosted primarily in quartz-
dominated veins and stringers within well-developed, schistose, carbonate-
sericite-pyrite, alteration envelopes.  

The vein system includes both single vein shears and composite vein lodes, with 
widths ranging from 1 ft. up to a maximum of 122 ft. in the unmined Brunswick 
No. 4 vein lode. The average stoping width in the former producer was 5-6 ft., 
although widths did exceed 50 ft. in at least four areas.  

Emperor estimates that 60% of the Idaho-Maryland resource will be contained in 
vein structures dipping between 50 and 80, with the balance found in veins 
dipping at considerably less than 45.  



All the known gold-producing veins are contained in a triangular block of ground 
bounded by in-dipping faults on the north and southwest. These form a keel-like 
zone plunging gently to the southeast. This Keel zone contains 64 known veins, 
62 of which have been exploited by mining.  

Without a doubt, the most significant stope in the former producer was the Idaho 
shoot, which was worked continuously from a depth of 100 ft. to a vertical depth 
of 2,000 ft. over a down-rake distance of 5,500 ft. and a height of about 600 ft.  

Between 1862 and 1894, the shoot produced more than 1 million oz. gold from 
fewer than 1 million tons of ore.  

Project Manager Ross Guenther does not expect acid generation to be a concern, 
pointing out that sulphide concentrations in the system are below 2%. “There are 
also a lot of carbonates that will act as a buffer,” he adds.  

For the time being, Emperor is concentrating on obtaining permits to proceed 
with dewatering of the 3,280-ft.-deep Brunswick shaft.  

In late October, the company received approval of its Final Environmental 
Impact Report on the proposed dewatering, and expected to receive its permits 
two weeks later, following a County Use Permit hearing. However, a last-minute 
appeal by a local residents’ group delayed the hearing. The County Use Permit 
hearing has been postponed until Jan. 11, 1996.  

The residents’ group is concerned that the proposed dewatering will cause the 
water table to be drawn down as the old workings are pumped out, rendering 
water wells dry. However, the company does not believe this will happen.  

The dewatering involves pumping the water into an existing pond adjacent to the 
Brunswick shaft, and then discharging it into the south fork of Wolf Creek.  

With an unemployment rate approaching 20%, the community is overwhelmingly 
in favor of the project. Many of the residents worked in the mine when it was in 
operation, or had family who did so.  

The dewatering, combined with exploration work, is budgeted at US$12-15 
million. Underground drilling will follow 
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Emperor lands Grass Valley permit 
POSTED BY: NORTHERN MINER STAFF FEBRUARY 5, 1996  
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Junior Emperor Gold (VSE) has secured a permit enabling it to dewater and 
explore the Idaho-Maryland mine in Grass Valley, Calif.  

The Nevada Cty. Planning Commission approved the permit following several 
delays and appeals by a group of local residents. 

Emperor holds an option to buy the former producer, and plans to dewater the 
mine and rehabilitate an existing shaft to allow access for exploration. The 
dewatering and rehabilitation are expected to last one year. 

 

http://www.northernminer.com/author/editor/
http://www.northernminer.com/news/emperor-lands-grass-valley-permit/1000095829/
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Form 27 
Securities Act 

MATERIAL CHANGE REPORT UNDER SECTION 67(1) OF THE ACT 

REPORTING ISSUER 

EMPEROR GOLD CORPORATION 
1610 - 777 Dunsmuir Street, PO Box 10435, Vancouver, BC V7Y 1K5 

DATE OF MATERIAL CHANGE 

June 19, 1997 

PRESS RELEASE 

July 2, 1997 

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL CHANGE 

The Company has proposed a change of name to Emgold Mining Corporation. 

FULL DESCRIPTION OF MATERIAL CHANGE 

The Company’s shareholders and Board of Directors have approved resolutions to change the 
Company’s name to Emgold Mining Corporation.  The number of shares held by each 
shareholder will remain the same, and the Company anticipates that the ticker symbol will 
remain ‘EMR’ on the Vancouver Stock Exchange.  The proposed name change is subject to 
Vancouver Stock Exchange approval. 

RELIANCE OF SECTION 67(2) OF THE ACT 

Not applicable. 

OMITTED INFORMATION 

None 

DIRECTORS/SENIOR OFFICER 

Contact:  Ellen Skobin Conville, Corporate Secretary 
Telephone:  687-4622 

STATEMENT OF SENIOR OFFICER/DIRECTOR 

The foregoing accurately discloses the material change referred to herein. 

DATED at Vancouver, BC this 7th day of July, 1997. 

 
 “ELLEN SKOBIN CONVILLE”  
ELLEN SKOBIN CONVILLE, Corporate Secretary 
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EMGOLD MINING CORPORATION 
Suite 1400 – 570 Granville Street 

Vancouver, B.C.  V6C 3P1 
www.emgold.com / www.langminng.com 

 
 
June 5, 2002      Ticker Symbol:  EMR-TSX Venture 
       SEC 12g3-2(b):  82-3003 
 
 

Emgold Renegotiates Option Agreement To Acquire  
The Idaho-Maryland Mine 

 
Emgold Mining Corporation (EMR-TSXVX) and its US subsidiary, Emperor Gold (US) 
Corp. (collectively referred to as “the Company” or “Emgold”) are pleased to report that 
they have entered into a revised mining lease and option to purchase agreement (“the 
Agreement”) with Mary Bouma, Erica Erickson and William Toms (collectively referred 
to as the “BET Group”) to acquire the Idaho-Maryland Mining Property (“The Property”) 
located in Grass Valley, California.  The Agreement includes a mining lease and option 
to purchase the Property, consisting of approximately 2,750 acres of minerals and mineral 
rights (with no surface rights), approximately 37 acres of land (referred to as the 
“Brunswick Property”) with mineral rights located around the New Brunswick Shaft and 
an additional parcel of 56 acres (referred to as the “BET Property”) of land located west 
of the Brunswick Property.  The term of the lease agreement is five years commencing on 
June 1, 2002.  
 
The Agreement includes a settlement of past delinquencies owing to the BET Group 
involving rent, royalty, option payments and property taxes of US$139,000 payable in 
three installments as follows: US$16,000 on May 31, 2002; US$28,000 on August 1, 
2002; and US$95,000 on December 1, 2002.  During the term of the lease agreement and 
prior to Emgold’s exercise of the option to purchase the Property, any production from 
the property will be subject to a 3 % Net Smelter Royalty (“NSR”).   
 
Emgold has the option to purchase the Property for US$4,350,000 during the 5-year term 
of the lease.  Under the terms of the Agreement, Emgold has agreed to pay to the BET 
Group the following non-refundable amounts: US$9,000 on each of the following dates, 
May 31, 2002, August 1, 2002 and December 1, 2002; US$19,500 quarterly on the first 
business day of each of the following months, February, May, August and November 
2003; and US$25,500 quarterly on the first business day of each of the same months for 
the balance of the lease agreement through 2007.  The cost of the option to purchase 
increases by 3% each year to the time of purchase.  Emgold has the right to purchase the 
Property outright at any time by pre-paying the principal and in any amount without 
premium or penalty to the BET Group. Emgold is also responsible for paying all 
appropriate taxes on the Property.  The Agreement is subject to regulatory approval. 
 
Emgold is planning the next stages of exploration and development of the Idaho-
Maryland, which may allow the mine to go into production using a smaller and more cost 
effective exploration and development program.  The Company is currently reviewing the 



steps required for modification to the existing exploration permit (Nevada County - USE 
Permit U94-017) to allow for the installation of an exploration ramp from the surface to 
the 600-foot level.  As a part of the review and developmental planning for the 
exploration program, Emgold will be working closely with the Nevada County Planning 
Department and will also engage the services of a well-recognized third party mining 
consulting company to prepare a scoping study.  The study will include a review of all 
technical and historical data, as well as a review of the necessary steps to modify the 
existing exploration permit and proceed with the installation of an exploration ramp to 
test specific drill targets located near the upper levels of the historic mine workings.  The 
exploration ramp would be strategically located adjacent to known targets near the 
historic Idaho Number 1 vein, which produced 1 million ounces of gold from 1 million 
tons of ore.  Diamond drilling would be completed on targets at the 300, 400, 500 and 
600-foot levels, culminating in the removal of a 10,000-ton bulk sample to test the ID1-3 
vein.  The scoping study will specifically address the definition of the various exploration 
targets and the steps required to complete a feasibility study and put the mine back into 
production. 
 
The three compartment, 3460 foot deep, New Brunswick vertical shaft provided access to 
the Idaho-Maryland’s 15 working levels.  Over 71 miles of underground workings 
provide access to much of the property.  The Idaho-Maryland mine was partially 
developed and mined from 160 veins with an additional 55 partially defined veins, which 
were not mined but delineated by drilling prior to closure in 1956.  The historical 
database includes the results of over 42 miles (230,000 feet) of exploration and 
development drilling.  The Idaho-Maryland vein system lies within a wedge-shaped 
block, which is confined by three bounding faults.  The historic system has been 
documented as being about 9,000 feet long up to 3,000 feet wide, and has been partially 
mined from surface to a vertical depth of 3,280 feet, which is the lowest level in the mine. 
  
The Idaho-Maryland Mine was discovered in 1851 and produced from 1862 through 
1956.  Total recorded production was 2,383,000 ounces of gold from 5,546,000 short tons 
or a recovered grade of 0.43 ounces of gold per short ton.  At the time of closure in 1956, 
there were 25 different working faces on 6 different levels. 
 
 
 

William J. Witte, P. Eng. 
Executive Vice President 

 
 
 

For further information please contact: 
Investor Relations   

Tel:  (604) 687-4622  Fax:  (604) 687-4212 
Toll Free:  1-888-267-1400  Email:  Investor@langmining.com 

No regulatory authority has approved or disapproved the information contained in this news release 
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British Columbia Securities Commission 

QUARTERLY AND YEAR END REPORT 
BC FORM 51-901F 
(previously Form 61) 

 
 
 
 
 
INSTRUCTIONS 
This report must be filed by Exchange Issuers within 60 days of the 
end of their first, second and third fiscal quarters and within 140 
days of their year end.  “Exchange Issuer” means an issuer whose 
securities are listed and posted for trading on the Canadian 
Venture Exchange and are not listed and posted on any other 
exchange or quoted on a trading or quotation system in Canada.  
Three schedules must be attached to this report as follows: 
SCHEDULE A:  FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Financial statements prepared in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles are required as follows: 
For the first, second and third financial quarters: 
Interim financial statements prepared in accordance with section 
1751 of the CICA Handbook, including the following:  balance 
sheet, income statement, statement of retained earnings, cash flow 
statement, and notes to the financial statements. 
The periods required to be presented, consistent with CICA 
Handbook section 1751, are as follows: 
• a balance sheet as of the end of the current interim period 

and a comparative balance sheet as of the end of the 
immediately preceding fiscal year; 

• a statement of retained earnings cumulatively for the current 
fiscal year-to-date, with a comparative statement for the 
comparable year-to-date period of the immediately preceding 
fiscal year; and 

• income statements and cash flow statements for the current 
interim period and cumulatively for the current fiscal year-to-
date, with comparative statements for the comparable interim 
periods (current and year-to-date) of the immediately 
preceding fiscal year. 

For the financial year end: 
Annual audited financial statements prepared on a comparative 
basis. 
Exchange Issuers with a fiscal year of less than or greater than 12 
months should refer to National Policy No. 51 Changes in the 
Ending Date of a Financial Year and in Reporting Status for 
guidance. 
Issuers in the development stage are directed to the guidance 
provided in CICA Accounting Guideline AcG-11 Enterprises in the 
Development Stage that states “enterprises in the development 
stage are encouraged to disclose in the income statement and in 
the cash flow statement cumulative balances from the inception of 
the development stage.” 
Issuers that have been involved in a reverse take-over should refer 
to the guidance found in BCIN #52-701 (previously NIN #91/21) 
with respect to such transactions including the requirement or 
disclosure of supplementary information regarding the legal 
parent’s prior financial operations. 
SCHEDULE B:  SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
The supplementary information set out below must be provided 
when not included in Schedule A. 
1. Analysis of expenses and deferred costs 

Provide a breakdown of amounts presented in the financial 
statements for the following:  deferred or expensed 
exploration, expensed research, deferred or expensed 
development, cost of sales, marketing expenses, general 
and administrative expenses, and any other material 
expenses reported in the income statement and any other 
material deferred costs presented in the balance sheet. 
The breakdown should separately present, at a minimum, 
each component that comprises 20% or more of the total 
amount for a material classification presented on the face of 
the financial statements.  All other components of a material 
classification may be grouped together under the heading 

“miscellaneous” or “other” in the cost breakdown; the total for 
“miscellaneous” should not exceed 30% of the total for a 
material classification. 
Breakdowns are required for the year-to-date period only. 
Breakdowns are not required for comparative periods. 
Issuers in the development stage are reminded that Section 
3(9)(b) of the BC Securities Commission’s Rules requires a 
schedule or note to the financial statements containing an 
analysis of each of exploration, research, development and 
administration costs, whether expensed or deferred and if 
the issuer is a natural resource issuer, that analysis for each 
material property.  Because the analysis required by Rule 
3(9)(b) must be included in the financial statements, the 
information does not have to be repeated in Schedule B.  
Consistent with CICA Accounting Guidelines AcG-11, staff 
considers an issuer to be in the development stage when it 
is devoting substantially all of its efforts to establishing a new 
business and planned principal operations have not 
commenced.  Further, in staff’s view, the lack of significant 
revenues for the past two years normally indicates that an 
issuer is in the development stage. 

2. Related party transactions 
Provide disclosure of all related party transactions as 
specified in Section 3840 of the CICA Handbook. 

3. Summary of securities issued and options granted during the 
period 
Provide the following information for the year-to-date period: 
(a) summary of securities issued during the period, 

including date of issue, type of security (common 
shares, convertible debentures, etc.), type of issue 
(private placement, public offering, exercise of 
warrants, etc.) number, price, total proceeds, type of 
consideration (cash, property, etc.) and commission 
paid, and 

(b) summary of options granted during the period, 
including date, number, name of optionee for those 
options granted to insiders, generic description of 
other optionees (e.g. “employees”,) exercise price and 
expiry date. 

4. Summary of securities as at the end of the reporting period 
Provide the following information as at the end of the 
reporting period: 
(a) description of authorized share capital including 
number of shares for each class, dividend rates on preferred 
shares and whether or not cumulative, redemption and 
conversion provisions, 
(b) number and recorded value for shares issued and 
outstanding, 
(c) description of options, warrants and convertible 
securities outstanding, including number or amount, exercise 
or conversion price and expiry date, and any recorded value, 
and 
(d) number of shares in each class of shares subject to 
escrow or pooling agreements. 

5. List the names of the directors and officers as at the date 
this report is signed and filed. 

SCHEDULE C:  MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
1. General Instructions 

(a) Management discussion and analysis provides 
management with the opportunity to discuss an 
issuer’s business, current financial results, position 
and future prospects. 

(b) Focus the discussion on material information, including 
liquidity, capital resources, known trends, 

Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act: The personal information requested on this form is collected under the authority of and used for the 
purpose of administering the Securities Act. Questions about the collection or use of this information can be directed to the Supervisor, Financial Reporting 
(604-899-6729), PO Box 10142, Pacific Centre, 701 West Georgia Street, Vancouver BC V7Y 1L2.  Toll Free in British Columbia 1-800-373-5393 



 
commitments, events, risks or uncertainties, that is 
reasonably expected to have a material effect on the 
issuer. 

(c) For an issuer with active ongoing operations the 
discussion should be substantive (e.g. generally two to 
four pages in length); for an issuer with limited 
operations the discussion may not be as extensive 
(e.g. one page). 

(d) The discussion must be factual, balanced and non-
promotional. 

(e) Where the discussion relates to a mineral project, as 
defined in National Instrument 43-101 “Standards of 
Disclosure for Mineral Projects,” the disclosure must 
comply with NI 43-101. 

2. Description of Business 
Provide a brief description of the issuer’s business.  Where 
an issuer is inactive and has no business, disclose these 
facts together with a description of any plans to reactivate 
and the business the issuer intends to pursue. 

3. Discussion of Operations and Financial Condition 
Provide a meaningful discussion and analysis of the issuer’s 
operations for the current year-to-date period presented in 
the financial statements.  Discuss the issuer’s financial 
condition as at the date of the most recent balance sheet 
presented in the financial statements. 
The following is a list of items that should be addressed in 
management’s discussion and analysis of the issuer’s 
operations and financial condition.  This is not intended to be 
an exhaustive list of the relevant items. 
(a) expenditures included in the analysis of expenses and 

deferred costs required under Securities Rule 3(9)(b) 
and Schedule B; 

(b) acquisition or abandonment of resource properties 
material to the issuer including material terms of any 
acquisition or disposition; 

(c) acquisition or disposition of other material capital 
assets including material terms of the acquisition, or 
disposition; 

(d) material write-off or write-down of assets; 
(e) transactions with related parties, disclosed in 

Schedule B or the notes to the financial statements; 
(f) material contracts or commitments; 
(g) material variances between the issuer’s financial 

results and information previously disclosed by the 
issuer, (for example if the issuer does not achieve 
revenue and profit estimates previous released, 
discuss this fact and the reasons for the variance); 

(h) material terms of any existing third party investor 
relations arrangements or contracts including: 
i. the name of the person; 
ii. the amount paid during the reporting period; and 

iii. the services provided during the reporting 
period; 

(i) legal proceedings; 
(j) contingent liabilities; 
(k) default under debt or other contractual obligations; 
(l) a breach of corporate, securities or other laws, or of an 

issuer’s listing agreement with the Canadian Venture 
Exchange including the nature of the breach, potential 
ramifications and what is being done to remedy it; 

(m) regulatory approval requirements for a significant 
transaction including whether the issuer has obtained 
the required approval or has applied for the approval; 

(n) management changes; or 
(o) special resolutions passed by shareholders. 

4. Subsequent Events 
Discuss any significant events and transactions that 
occurred during the time from the date of the financial 
statements up to the date that this report is certified by the 
issuer. 

5. Financings, Principal Purposes and Milestones 
(a) In a tabular format, compare any previously disclosed 

principal purposes from a financing to actual 
expenditures made during the reporting period. 

(b) Explain any material variances and the impact, if any, 
on the issuer’s ability to achieve previously disclosed 
objectives and milestones. 

6. Liquidity and Solvency 
Discuss the issuer’s working capital position and its ability to 

meet its ongoing obligations as they become due. 
How to File Under National Instrument 13-101 – System for 
Electronic Document Analysis and Retrieval (SEDAR) 
BC Form 51-901F Quarterly and Year End Reports are filed under 
Category of Filing: Continuous Disclosure and Filing Type: Interim 
Financial Statements or Annual Financial Statements.  Schedule A 
(Financial Statements) is filed under Document Type: Interim 
Financial Statements or Annual Financial Statements.  Schedule B 
(Supplementary Information) and Schedule C (management 
Discussion) are filed under Document Type: BC Form 51-901F 
(previously Document Type Form 61(BC)). 
Meeting the Form Requirements 
BC Form 510-901 consists of three parts: Instructions to schedules 
A, B and C, issuer details and a certificate.  To comply with 
National instrument 132-101 it is not necessary to reproduce the 
instructions that are set out in BC Form 51-901F.  A cover page to 
the schedules titled BC Form 51-901F that includes the issuer 
details and certificate is all that is required to meet the BC Form 
51-901F requirements.  The form of the certificate should be 
amended so as to refer to one or two of the three schedules 
required to complete the report. 
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Management’s Responsibility for Financial Reporting 
 
The accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Company have been prepared by 
management in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.  The 
financial statements contain estimates based on management’s judgement.  Management 
maintains an appropriate system of internal controls to provide reasonable assurance that 
transactions are authorized, assets safeguarded, and proper records maintained. 
 
The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors has met with the company’s independent 
auditors to review the scope and results of the annual audit and to review the consolidated 
financial statements and related financial reporting matters prior to submitting the consolidated 
financial statements to the Board for approval. 
 
The Company’s independent auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, are appointed by the 
shareholders to conduct an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards in 
Canada and their report follows. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
William J. (Bill) Witte 
President & Director 
 
 
April 25, 2003 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 



 

 
 

 
 

PricewaterhouseCoopers refers to the Canadian firm of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP and the other member firms of PricewaterhouseCoopers 
International Limited, each of which is a separate and independent legal entity.  

 

 
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
PricewaterhouseCoopers Place 
250 Howe Street, Suite 700 
Vancouver, British Columbia 
Canada V6C 3S7 
Telephone +1 (604) 806 7000 
Facsimile +1 (604) 806 7806 
 
 
 
 

 

  
  

 
 
 
Auditors’ Report 
 
To the Shareholders of 
Emgold Mining Corporation 
 
 
We have audited the consolidated balance sheets of Emgold Mining Corporation as at December 31, 
2002 and 2001 and the consolidated statements of operations and deficit and cash flows for the years 
then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. 
 
We conducted our audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those 
standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the 
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, 
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes 
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as 
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. 
 
In our opinion, these consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of the Company as at December 31, 2002 and 2001 and the results of its operations 
and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting 
principles. As required by the Company Act (British Columbia), we report that, in our opinion, these 
principles have been applied, after giving retroactive effect to the change in the method of accounting 
for exploration expenditures as explained in note 2, on a consistent basis. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Chartered Accountants 
 
Vancouver, British Columbia 
April 25, 2003 



 

EMGOLD MINING CORPORATION 
(an exploration stage company) 
Consolidated Balance Sheets 
As at December 31, 2002 and 2001 
 
 2002 2001 

(restated) 
   
Assets   
   
Current assets   

Cash and cash equivalents $ 116,584 $ 7,128 
Due from related parties (Note 10(c)) 75,557 -- 
Prepaid expenses and deposits 33,348 -- 
Accounts receivable 6,583 959 

 232,072 8,087 
   
Reclamation bond 3,000 3,000 
Equipment (Note 4) 6,229 -- 
Mineral property interests (Note 4) 87,533 36,952 
   
 $ 328,834 $ 48,039 
   
Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity (Deficiency)   
   
Current liabilities   

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 99,376 $ 56,495 
Due to related parties (Note 10) 26,932 871,666 
Promissory notes payable (Note 5) -- 459,894 

 126,308 1,388,055 
   
Notes payable (Note 6) 791,447 -- 
 917,755 1,388,055 
   
Shareholders’ equity (deficiency)   

Share capital (Note 7) 18,292,876 17,151,797 
Deficit (18,881,797) (18,491,813) 

 (588,921) (1,340,016) 
   
 $ 328,834 $ 48,039 
Nature of operations (Note 1) 
Subsequent events (Notes 4(ii), 6 and 14) 
Commitments (Notes 4(ii) and 12) 
 
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 
 
 
Approved by the Directors 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Frank A. Lang    William J. Witte 
Director    Director 
 

  



EMGOLD MINING CORPORATION 
(an exploration stage company) 
Consolidated Statements of Operations and Deficit 
Years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001 
 
 2002 2001 

(restated) 
   
Expenses   

Amortization $ 505 $ 2,123 
Exploration expenses (see schedule) 400,698 55,629 
Foreign exchange loss (gain) 3,748 3,468 
Finance expense (Notes 6 and 10) 15,584 33,108 
Legal, accounting and audit 51,590 31,235 
Management fees (Note 10) -- 30,000 
Office and administration 115,622 60,404 
Shareholder communications 44,750 25,990 
Travel 3,304 16 

 (635,801) (241,973)
Other expenses and income   

Loss on disposal of equipment -- (74,555)
Reversal of Idaho-Maryland property accruals (Note 5) 245,417 293,639 
Refund of Idaho-Maryland deposit previously written off -- 48,619 
Write-down of mineral property interests (Note 4) (1) (67,717)
Interest income 401 990 

Loss for the year (389,984) (40,997)
   
Deficit, beginning of year (18,491,813) (18,450,816)
   
Deficit, end of year $(18,881,797) $(18,491,813)
   
Loss per share – basic and diluted $ (0.02) $ (0.00) 
   
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding 20,597,538 18,546,990 

   
Total common shares outstanding at end of year 25,119,319 18,589,319 
 
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 



EMGOLD MINING CORPORATION 
(an exploration stage company) 
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 
Years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001 
 
 2002 2001 

(restated) 
   
Cash provided by (used for):   
   
Operations:   

Loss for the year $ (389,984) $ (40,997) 
Items not involving cash   

Amortization 505 2,123 
Loss on disposal of equipment -- 74,555 
Write-down of mineral property interests 1 67,717 
Reversal of Idaho-Maryland property accruals (245,417) -- 

 (634,895) 103,398 
Changes in non-cash operating working capital   

Accounts receivable (5,624) 4,594 
Due to/from related parties 96,156 225,106 
Prepaid expenses and deposits (33,348) -- 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 42,881 (318,704)

 (534,830) 14,394 
   
Investing activities:   

Mineral property acquisition costs (31,581) (21,350)
Equipment additions (6,734) -- 

 (38,315) (21,350)
   
Financing activities:   

Promissory notes payable (214,478) -- 
Common shares issued for cash 897,079 -- 

 682,601 -- 
   
Increase in cash during the year 109,456 (6,956)
Cash, beginning of year 7,128 14,084 
   
Cash, end of year  $ 116,584 $ 7,128 

   
Supplementary information:   
   
Financing and investing activities   

Shares issued for Rozan property payment 5,000 2,000 
Shares issued for Stewart property payment 14,000 3,000 
Shares issued for debt settlements 225,000 -- 

 
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 
 



EMGOLD MINING CORPORATION 
(an exploration stage company) 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
Years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001 
 
1. Nature of operations and going concern: 
 

These financial statements are prepared on a going-concern basis, which implies that the 
Company will continue realizing its assets and discharging its liabilities in the normal 
course of business.   
 
The Company is in the process of exploring its mineral property interests and has not yet 
determined whether its mineral property interests contain mineral reserves that are 
economically recoverable.  The Company’s continuing operations and the underlying 
value and recoverability of the amounts shown for mineral property interests are entirely 
dependent upon the existence of economically recoverable mineral reserves, the ability 
of the Company to obtain the necessary financing to complete the exploration and 
development of the mineral property interests, and on future profitable production or 
proceeds from the disposition of the mineral property interests. 
 
As at December 31, 2002, the Company had working capital of $105,764 (2001 – 
working capital deficiency of $1,379,968), and a deficit of $18,881,797 (2001 – 
$18,491,813).  On January 14, 2003, the Company completed a private placement for 
gross proceeds of $1,112,500.  See Note 14. 
 
The Company’s ability to continue in operation is dependent on its ability to secure 
additional financing.  While it has been successful in securing additional financing in the 
past, there can be no assurance that it will be able to do so in the future.  Accordingly, 
these financial statements do not reflect adjustments to the carrying value of assets and 
liabilities and balance sheet classifications used that would be necessary if going concern 
assumptions were not appropriate.  Some adjustments could be material.   

 
2. Change in accounting policies: 

 
The Company previously issued statutory financial statements to its shareholders on the 
financial position as at December 31, 2001 and 2000, and the results of operations and 
cash flows for each of the years in the two-year period ended December 31, 2001.  
These financial statements have been distributed to shareholders and filed with the 
regulatory authorities. 
 
Through to December 31, 2001, the Company capitalized its exploration costs on its 
mineral property interests.  In fiscal 2002, the Company has determined that the following 
changes to the Company’s financial reporting is appropriate: 
 
(i) Change in accounting for exploration and development expenditures as disclosed in 

Note 3(g). 
 
(ii) Change in its accounting policy for stock compensation as disclosed in Note 3(k). 
 
Under generally accepted accounting principles in Canada changes in accounting 
policies are given effect to on a retroactive basis, other than stock-based compensation. 
Therefore, these financial statements have been changed to reflect the change in 
accounting for exploration and development expenditures.  



EMGOLD MINING CORPORATION 
(an exploration stage company) 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
Years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001 
 
3. Significant accounting policies: 

 
(a) Basis of consolidation 

 
These consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with Canadian 
generally accepted accounting principles.  They include the accounts of the Company 
and its wholly owned subsidiaries.  All material intercompany balances and transactions 
have been eliminated.   
 
(b) Use of estimates 
 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian generally accepted 
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that 
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets 
and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue 
and expenditures during the reporting period.  Significant areas where management’s 
judgement is required include the determination of impairment of mineral property 
interests and capital assets, reclamation obligations, rates for depreciation, and 
classification of accounts receivable between current and non-current assets.  In 
assessing the underlying values of mineral property interests, management considers 
both internally prepared life-of-mine studies and the estimated cash flows under actual or 
proposed arrangements with other parties for development and operation of the interest.  
These arrangements may, and likely, will, change in the future in response to changing 
business conditions, and these changes may impact the Company’s estimates of cash 
flows.  Actual results could differ from those estimated. 

 
(c) Cash and cash equivalents 
 
Cash and cash equivalents include cash, and those short-term money market 
instruments that are readily convertible to cash with an original term of less than 90 days. 
 
(d) Temporary investments 
 
Temporary investments are carried at the lesser of cost and net realizable value and 
have maturity dates between 90 days and 1 year.  Premiums and discounts at the time of 
acquisition of those investments are amortized to income over the term to maturity of the 
investment. 

 
(e) Equipment 
 
Equipment is recorded at cost and is depreciated using a straight-line basis at the rate of 
20% per annum for office and exploration equipment and 30% per annum for computer 
equipment.   



EMGOLD MINING CORPORATION 
(an exploration stage company) 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
Years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001 
 
3. Significant accounting policies (continued): 
 

(f) Mineral property interests 
 
Mineral property acquisition costs are capitalized and deferred until the property to which 
they relate is placed into production, sold, allowed to lapse or abandoned. These costs 
will be amortized over the estimated life of the property following commencement of 
commercial production or written off if the property is sold, allowed to lapse or 
abandoned.  
 
Mineral property acquisition costs include cash expenses at cost and the fair market 
value of common shares, based on the trading price of the shares, issued for mineral 
property interests pursuant to the terms of the related property agreement.  Payments 
relating to a property acquired under an option or joint venture agreement, where 
payments are made at the sole discretion of the Company, are recorded as mineral 
property costs upon payment.   
 
Although the Company has taken steps to verify title to mineral properties in which it has 
an interest, in accordance with industry standards for the current stage of exploration of 
such properties, these procedures do not guarantee the Company’s title.  Property title 
may be subject to unregistered prior agreements and non-compliance regulatory 
requirements.    
 
The amount shown for mineral property interests represents acquisition costs incurred to 
date and the fair market value of common shares issued to acquire mineral property 
interests and does not necessarily reflect present or future value. 
 
Administrative and exploration expenditures are expensed in the year incurred.  Property 
investigation costs, where a property interest is not acquired, are expensed as incurred. 
 
(g) Exploration and development expenditures 
 
In 2002 the Company changed its accounting policy with respect to exploration and 
development expenditures.  Acquisition costs are capitalized, as in prior years.  
Exploration and development expenditures are expensed until a pre-feasibility or 
feasibility study has been completed that indicates the property is economically feasible.  
Capitalized costs are written down to their estimated recoverable amount if the mineral 
properties are determined to be uneconomic or are placed for sale.  Previously, the 
Company’s policy was to capitalize acquisition, exploration and development costs for 
non-producing properties until the property is in commercial production or is abandoned.  
Accumulated costs relating to abandoned properties would have been expensed in the 
year they are abandoned.  This change in accounting policy has been applied 
retroactively and had the effect of increasing (decreasing) the following: 
 
 Years ended December 31, 
 2002 2001 
Loss for the year  $           --  $    22,990 
Opening deficit 110,507 87,517 
Closing deficit -- 110,507 
Mineral property interests $(110,507) $(110,507) 

 



EMGOLD MINING CORPORATION 
(an exploration stage company) 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
Years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001 
 
3. Significant accounting policies (continued): 

 
(h) Translation of foreign currencies 
 
The Company’s operations in the United States are considered to be integrated for the 
purposes of foreign currency translation.  Monetary assets and liabilities are translated at 
the rate of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date, non-monetary assets and 
related depreciation at applicable historical rates and revenue and expense items at the 
average rate of exchange prevailing on transaction dates.  Foreign currency translation 
gains or losses are included in the consolidated statements of operations and deficit. 

 
(i) Income taxes 

 
Income taxes are calculated using the liability method of accounting.  Temporary 
differences arising from the difference between the tax basis of an asset or liability and its 
carrying amount on the balance sheet are used to calculate future income tax liabilities or 
assets.  Future income tax liabilities or assets are calculated using the tax rates 
anticipated to apply in the periods that the temporary differences are expected to reverse.   
 
(j) Loss per common share 
 
Loss per common share is computed using the weighted average number of common 
shares outstanding during the year.  All outstanding options and warrants are anti-dilutive 
and therefore have no effect on determination of loss per share. 
 
(k) Share option plan 

 
The Company has adopted the new Canadian standard for accounting for stock-based 
compensation. As permitted by the standard, the Company has elected not to follow the 
fair value method of accounting for stock options granter. Under this method, no 
compensation expense is recognized when the options are granted pursuant to the plan.  
 
In accordance with the standard, the fair value of any options granted after January 1, 
2002 are disclosed within the notes to the accounts. There were no such options granted 
in 2002 therefore no such disclosure has been made. Any consideration paid by directors 
and employees on exercise of stock options or purchase of shares is credited to share 
capital.  
 



EMGOLD MINING CORPORATION 
(an exploration stage company) 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
Years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001 
 
4. Property, plant and equipment: 

 
(i) Equipment: 

 
 2002 2001 
 Cost Accumulated 

depreciation 
Net 

book 
value 

Cost Accumulated 
depreciation  

Net 
book 
value 

Equipment $ 6,734 $     505 $ 6,229 $       -- $        -- $      --
 
(ii) Mineral property interests: 
 
The cumulative acquisition costs of the Company’s interest in mineral property interests 
owned, leased or under option, consist of the following: 
 
Mineral property acquisition costs 2002 2001 

(restated) 
Idaho-Maryland Property, California  $           1 $           1 
Holly Property, Nevada -- 1 
Rozan Property, British Columbia 38,990 23,990 
Porph Claim, British Columbia 4,812 3,324 
Stewart Property, British Columbia 43,730 9,636 

$  87,533 $  36,952 
 
Idaho-Maryland Property, California 
 
Until fiscal 2000, the Company had three distinct interests in the Idaho-Maryland Property 
and surrounding areas in Grass Valley Mining District, California.  During fiscal 2000 the 
option to purchase and the lease of this property lapsed.  In fiscal 2002, the Company 
was able to renegotiate with the owners of the property to extend and revise the terms of 
the mining lease and option.  All acquisition and exploration costs relating to the Idaho-
Maryland property were written off in fiscal 1999 and expenditure since then has been 
written off in subsequent years.  
 
As a compromise of its monetary delinquencies involving rent, royalty and other 
payments in the years up to fiscal 2000, which original payments were modified as 
promissory notes, the Company agreed to pay to the owners the sum of US$139,000, 
which was paid prior to December 31, 2002.  The term of the amended lease is for a 
period of five years, commencing on June 1, 2002, and ending on May 31, 2007.  The 
owners have granted to the Company the exclusive right and option to purchase all of the 
leased property.  As consideration for the said option, the Company shall pay to the 
owners the following non-refundable amounts: US$9,000 on each of the following dates: 
May 31, 2002, August 1, 2002, and December 1, 2002, all of which were paid.  Payments 
of US$19,500 are due quarterly on the first day of February, May, August and November 
in 2003, and payments of US$25,500 quarterly on the first business day of each of the 
same months during the years from 2004 to 2007.  In the event that all payments have 
been made, the purchase price for 2002 was to be US$4,350,000.  For succeeding lease 
years in which the option may be exercised, that price shall be increased by 3% each 
year.  All royalty payments shall be applied as a credit on the purchase price, but option 
payments shall not be so applied.   



EMGOLD MINING CORPORATION 
(an exploration stage company) 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
Years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001 
 

 
4. Property, plant and equipment (continued): 

 
(ii) Mineral property interests (continued): 
 
Holly Gold Property, Nevada 
 
The Company wrote the property down by $34,386 in fiscal 2001 to a nominal carrying 
value of $1 and has written the remaining nominal carrying value of $1 off in fiscal 2002. 
 
Rozan Gold Property, British Columbia 

 
In 2000 the Company entered into an option agreement to acquire the rights to the Rozan 
Gold Property, a prospect located south of the community of Nelson in the Red Mountain 
area of southeastern British Columbia.  The Company can earn a 100% interest in the 
property by making stepped payments totalling $100,000 ($20,000 paid) and issuing 
200,000 (150,000 issued) common shares by April 1, 2006. The property is subject to a 
3% net smelter returns royalty.  The Company has the right to purchase 66 2/3% of the 
royalty for the sum of $1,000,000 and has the first right of refusal to purchase the 
remaining 33 1/3%.  Subsequent to December 31, 2002, 50,000 common shares were 
issued and $10,000 paid for the property payment due on April 1, 2003. 
 
Porph Claims, British Columbia 

 
The Company has staked six claims contiguous to the Stewart Property located near 
Nelson in southeastern British Columbia. 
 
Stewart Property, British Columbia 
 
In 2001 the Company entered into an option agreement to acquire the rights to the 
Stewart mineral claims, a prospect located close to Nelson in southeastern British 
Columbia.  The Company can earn a 100% interest in the property by making payments 
totalling $150,000 ($20,000 paid) and issuing 200,000 common shares (100,000 issued) 
by 2007.  The Company has also agreed to incur exploration expenditures of $49,200 
over two years ($28,732 incurred to December 31, 2002).  The property is subject to a 
3% net smelter returns royalty.  The Company has the right to purchase 66 2/3% of the 
royalty for the sum of $1,000,000 and has the first right of refusal to purchase the 
remaining 33 1/3%. 

 
5. Promissory notes payable: 
 

 2002 2001 
Promissory notes and accrued interest $ -- $ 459,894 

 
In connection with the Idaho-Maryland property (refer to Note 4), the company issued to 
the owners of the property a number of promissory notes instead of cash payments in 
relation to the option agreement.  These promissory notes had an 8% annual interest 
rate.  During fiscal 2002, the owners of the property agreed to a payment of $214,477 
(US$139,000) from the Company as settlement for payment of these notes. The balance 
of $245,417 has been recorded as other income in fiscal 2002.   



EMGOLD MINING CORPORATION 
(an exploration stage company) 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
Years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001 
 
6. Notes payable: 
 

 2002 2001 
Notes payable $ 791,447 $ -- 

 
During fiscal 2002, the Company entered into private placements, completed a debt 
settlement, and has been able to pay off the majority of the creditors of the Company.  
Mr. Frank A. Lang and Lang Mining Corporation (collectively “Lang”) remained as the 
major creditors of the Company, the debt arising from financial support provided to the 
Company over a prolonged period.  The Company entered into an agreement with Lang 
to issue 3,948,428 Series A First Preference shares in full satisfaction of an aggregate 
$789,686 of indebtedness owing to Lang.  Regulatory approval of the preferred share 
issuance was received subsequent to the year ended December 31, 2002.  Terms of the 
preferred share issuance are described below.  Interest of $1,761 has been accrued in 
fiscal 2002 and is included in the notes payable balance. 

 
The Series A First Preference Shares will rank in priority to the Company’s common 
shares and will be entitled to fixed cumulative preferential dividends at a rate of 7% per 
annum.  The shares will be redeemable by the company at any time on 30 days of written 
notice at a redemption price of $0.20 per share, but are redeemable by the holder only 
out of funds available that are not in the Company’s opinion otherwise required for the 
development of the Company’s mineral property interest or to maintain a minimum of $2 
million in working capital. 
 
The Series A First Preference Shares will be convertible into common shares at any time 
at a ratio of one common share for every four Series A First Preference Shares, which 
represents an effective conversion price of $0.80 per common share.  The Preference 
Shares also have attached a gold redemption feature by which holders may elect at the 
time of any proposed redemption to receive gold in specie valued at US$300 per ounce 
in lieu of cash, provided the Company has on hand at the time gold in specie having an 
aggregate value of not less than the redemption amount. 

 
7. Share capital: 
 

Authorized: 
 

500,000,000 (2001 – 50,000,000) common shares without par value 
 
50,000,000 first preference shares without par value 



EMGOLD MINING CORPORATION 
(an exploration stage company) 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
Years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001 
 
7. Share capital (continued): 

 
Issued and fully paid: 

 
 Number of 

Shares 
Amount 

Balance, December 31, 2000 18,489,319 $17,146,797 
Shares issued for other:   

Rozan property payment at $0.04 50,000 2,000 
Stewart property payment at $0.06 50,000 3,000 

Balance, December 31, 2001 18,589,319 17,151,797 
Shares issued for cash:   

Private placement, less share issue costs 1,600,000 342,579 
Private placement, less share issue costs 2,350,000 524,000 
Warrants exercised 50,000 12,500 
Stock options exercised 180,000 18,000 

Shares issued for other:   
Debt settlement at $0.10 2,250,000 225,000 
Rozan property payment at $0.10 50,000 5,000 
Stewart property payment at $0.28 50,000 14,000 

   
Balance, December 31, 2002 25,119,319 $18,292,876 

 
At December 31, 2002, there were 4,558 (2001 – 4,558) common shares held in escrow. 
These shares were cancelled and returned to treasury subsequent to year-end. 
 
Stock options: 

 
The Company has a fixed stock option plan for its directors and employees to acquire 
common shares of the Company at a price determined by the fair market value of the 
shares at the date of grant.  The maximum aggregate number of common shares 
reserved for issuance pursuant to the plan is 2,267,580 common shares, of which 
118,500 stock options are still available to be issued.  The stock options currently 
outstanding are exercisable for periods up to ten years.   
 
A summary of the changes in stock options for the years ended December 31, 2002 and 
2001, is presented below: 

 
 Shares Weighted Average 

Exercise Price 
Balance, December 31, 2000 1,203,000 $0.282 
Cancelled (55,000) $0.255 
Expired (221,000) $0.300 
Granted 1,257,000 $0.100 
Balance, December 31, 2001 2,184,000 $0.180 
Exercised (180,000) $0.100 
Cancelled, forfeited and expired (35,000) $0.240 
Balance, all exercisable,  

December 31, 2002 
 

1,969,000 
 

$0.180 
 



EMGOLD MINING CORPORATION 
(an exploration stage company) 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
Years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001 
 
7. Share capital (continued): 
 

The following table summarizes information about the stock options outstanding at 
December 31, 2002: 

 
Range of 
Exercise 

Price 

Number Outstanding 
and Exercisable at 
December 31, 2002 

Weighted Average 
Remaining Contractual 

Life 

Weighted 
Average 

Exercise Price 
$0.25 352,000 6.26 years $0.25 
$0.30 540,000 2.07 years $0.30 
$0.10 1,077,000 8.83 years $0.10 

 1,969,000 8.33 years $0.18 
 
Warrants: 
 
As at December 31, 2002, the following share purchase warrants issued in connection 
with financings made by private placements were outstanding: 

 
Number of Warrants Exercise Price Expiry Date 

960,000 $0.30 September 20, 2003 
960,000 $0.30 September 27, 2003 

2,820,000 $0.30 December 20, 2003 
4,740,000   

 
8. Income and resource taxes: 
 

(a) A reconciliation between the Company’s statutory and effective tax rate is as follows: 
 
 2002 2001 
Statutory tax rate 39.62% 44.62% 
Loss for the year $  (389,984) $   (40,997) 
Provision for income taxes based on statutory 

Canadian combined federal and provincial tax 
rates 

 
 

(154,512) 

 
 

(18,293) 
Non-deductible differences 6,132 13,411 
Recognized tax losses -- (152,716) 
Benefits from losses not recognized 139,882 2,156,139 
Differences in foreign tax rates 8,498 (8,799) 
 -- -- 

 



EMGOLD MINING CORPORATION 
(an exploration stage company) 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
Years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001 
 
8. Income and resource taxes (continued): 
 

(b) The significant components of the Company’s future tax assets are as follows: 
  
 2002 2001 
Future income tax assets:   

Operating losses carried forward $ 1,134,672 $ 1,311,625 
Mineral property interests representing excess of 

tax basis over carrying value 
 

5,473,658 
 

5,291,210 
Other 147,457 356 

 6,755,787 6,603,191 
Valuation allowance for future tax assets (6,755,787) (6,603,191) 
 -- -- 
Future income tax liabilities:   

Future income tax liability for finance costs -- -- 
Future income tax liability for mineral property 

interests representing excess of carrying value 
over tax basis 

 
 

-- 

 
 

-- 
 -- -- 
Net future income tax liability $             -- $             -- 

 
The realization of income benefits related to these future potential tax deductions is 
uncertain and cannot be viewed as more likely than not.  Accordingly, no future income 
tax asset has been recognized for accounting purposes. 
 
(c) The Company has Canadian non-capital losses carried forward of $3,185,491 that 

may be available for tax purposes. The losses expire as follows: 
 

Expiry date $ 
2003 686,418 
2004 888,846 
2005 535,698 
2006 428,149 
2007 238,584 
2008 122,737 
2009 285,059 

 3,185,491 
 

9. Segmented financial information: 
 

The Company has one operating segment, which is the exploration and development of 
mineral properties.  The Company’s mineral property interests and capital assets are 
located in the United States and Canada.  Details of expenditures on these properties are 
shown on the consolidated schedules of exploration expenses to the financial 
statements. 



EMGOLD MINING CORPORATION 
(an exploration stage company) 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
Years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001 
 

 
10. Related party transactions and balances: 
 

Services rendered by: 2002 2001 
Legal fees (a) $ 32,887 $ 89,020 
Director (b) $ 72,154 $ 23,551 
LMC Management Services Ltd. (c) $ 169,424 $ 28,194 
Lang Mining Corporation (d) $ -- $ 89,020 

 
Balances receivable from (payable to) (e):   

LMC Management Services Ltd. $ 75,557 $ -- 
Receivable from: $ 75,557 $ -- 
Lang Mining Corporation (d) and (e) $ -- $ (372,133) 
ValGold Resources Ltd. $ (137) $ (2,661) 
Sultan Minerals Inc. $ -- $ (3,313) 
LMC Management Services Ltd. $ -- $ (30,168) 
Directors (e) $ (15,566) $ (446,995) 
Legal fees (a) $ (11,229) $ (16,390) 
Payable to: $ (26,932) $ (871,666) 

 
Related party transactions not disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial 
statement are as follows:  

 
(a) Legal fees were paid to a law firm of which a director is a partner. 

 
(b) A director of the Company, who is also project manager at the Idaho-Maryland 

property, receives project management consulting services.   
 

(c) Commencing August 1, 2001, management, administrative, geological and other 
services are provided by LMC Management Services Ltd. (“LMC”), a private 
company held jointly by the Company and other public companies, to provide 
services at cost to the various public entities currently sharing office space with the 
Company.  Currently the Company has a 25% interest in LMC.  Three months of 
estimated working capital is required to be on deposit with LMC under the terms of 
the services agreement.  There is no difference between the cost of $1 and equity 
value. 

 
(d) Lang Mining Corporation (“Lang Mining”) is a private company controlled by an officer 

and director of the Company.  Lang Mining provided management services at a rate 
of $5,000 per month, and provided, accounting, geological, and other services at cost 
plus 15%, until June 30, 2001.  

 
Effective July 2001 the Company, in agreement with Lang Mining, discontinued 
payment of the $5,000 per month management fee and cost plus 15% administration 
fee. (See Note 10 (c)). 



EMGOLD MINING CORPORATION 
(an exploration stage company) 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
Years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001 
 
10. Related party transactions and balances (continued): 
 

(e) The amounts are non-interest bearing and due on demand, with no fixed terms of 
repayment, except for a balance owing to a director and officer of the Company, 
which bears interest at 10% per annum.  This balance was settled by the issuance of 
preferred shares (Refer to Note 6 - Notes payable) subsequent to the year ended 
December 31, 2002. Interest of $15,584 has been accrued and is included in the 
notes payable.  Interest on related party transactions were recorded at the exchange 
amounts, which are measured at fair value. 

 
(f) During the year ended December 31, 2002, a debt settlement of 2,250,000 common 

shares at a price of $0.10 was completed to settle $225,000 of debt with three 
directors of the Company and a private company controlled by a director and officer 
of the Company.  

 
11. Financial instruments: 
 

Financial instruments are recorded at cost.  Fair value estimates are made at the balance 
sheet date, based upon relevant market information relating to the financial instrument.  
These estimates are subjective in nature and involve uncertainties and significant matters 
of judgement.  Changes in assumptions could significantly affect these estimates.  
 

12. Rental commitment: 
 

The Company has a rental commitment for its subsidiary office premises of US$30,397 in 
fiscal 2003 and US$23,048 in fiscal 2004.  See note 4 (ii) for further commitments. 
 

13. Comparative figures: 
 
Certain of the prior year’s figures have been reclassified to conform to the current year’s 
presentation. 

 
14. Subsequent event: 

 
Subsequent to December 31, 2002, the Company completed a private placement of 
2,472,222 units at a price of $0.45 per unit, for gross proceeds of $1,112,500.  Each unit 
is comprised of one common share and one non-transferable common share purchase 
warrant.  Each whole share purchase warrant will entitle the holder to purchase one 
additional common share until February 3, 2004, at an exercise price of $0.55.  
Canaccord Capital Corporation received a cash commission of 8% and a non-
transferable broker warrant exercisable to purchase up to 494,444 common shares until 
February 3, 2004, at an exercise price of $0.55 per share.  

 



 

EMGOLD MINING CORPORATION 
(an exploration stage company) 
Consolidated Schedules of Exploration Expenses 
Years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001 
 
 December 31, December 31, 
 2002 2001 

(restated) 
Idaho-Maryland Mine, California   
Exploration costs   

Assays and analysis $ 350 $ -- 
Consulting and engineering studies 138,176 24,326 
Geological and geochemical 127,213 -- 
Land lease and taxes 78,812 -- 
Site activities 25,765 6,215 
Transportation 16,569 2,098 
Incurred during the year 386,885 32,639 
   

Rozan Property, British Columbia   
Exploration costs   

Assays and analysis 117 346 
Geological and geochemical 525 (4,568) 
Site activities 173 11,453 
Incurred during the year 815 7,231 

   
Porph Claim, British Columbia   
Exploration costs   

Site activities 25 -- 
Incurred during the year 25 -- 

   
Stewart Property, British Columbia   
Exploration costs   

Assays and analysis 7,615 11,814 
Geological and geochemical 4,468 3,004 
Site activities 843 941 
Transportation 47 -- 
Incurred during the year  12,973 15,759 
   

Total Exploration Expenses  $ 400,698 $ 55,629 
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EMGOLD MINING CORPORATION
1400 – 570 Granville Street

Vancouver, B.C.  Canada  V6C 3P1
www.emgold.com

June 17, 2003 Ticker Symbol:  EMR-TSX Venture Exchange
SEC 12g3-2(b):  82-3003

EMGOLD COMMENCES SURFACE DRILL PROGRAM AT IDAHO-MARYLAND

Emgold Mining Corporation (EMR:TSX Venture Exchange) (“the Company”) is
pleased to announce that it is starting its surface drilling program on the Idaho-Maryland
Mine located in Grass Valley, California. The Company has designed a 15,000 to
20,000 foot surface-drilling program to test the structural geologic model developed
from over 100 years of historical information available from the Idaho-Maryland Mine.
The initial phase of the program will include 4,000 to 5,000 feet of diamond drilling to
commence within a week.  Boart Longyear has been awarded the diamond-drilling
contract for the program.

The initial phase of surface core drilling will test new high-grade gold-quartz vein targets
in the westernmost portion of the Idaho Deformation Corridor.  These targets are in
addition to the known resources at the Idaho-Maryland Mine.  Drilling will explore the
entire width of the Idaho Deformation Corridor along a 1,500-foot strike length and will
be testing multiple lode targets.  High-grade lode targets include (1) the Idaho 120 Vein
target, hosted within the “L Fault”, at the north boundary of the deformation corridor, (2)
the Idaho “1 Vein” along the south boundary, and (3) a complex set of high-grade link
veins within the corridor.  Data mining from the large Idaho-Maryland Mine historic
database has demonstrated the coincidence of localized, pipe-like, carbonate-sericite
alteration blooms lying directly updip from all areas of significant underground gold
production.  The large alteration bloom in the vicinity of the first drill site is entirely
unexplored.  The alteration bloom measures a minimum 500 feet in strike length and
150 feet in width.  This target is structurally favorable, occupying a wedge-shaped area
at the western terminus of the Deformation Corridor, where the L Fault intersects the
Idaho 1 Vein.  There is a high level of confidence for new high-grade lode gold
discoveries in this area.  This will be the first systematic attempt to explore the entire
width of the Idaho Deformation Corridor at its western end.

Emgold, through its wholly owned subsidiary, Idaho-Maryland Mining Corporation
(formerly Emperor Gold (U.S.) Corp.) is also preparing the necessary documentation to
submit applications to acquire a Use Permit to construct a decline and surface facilities
to continue with the underground exploration and development of the Idaho-Maryland
and ultimately put the mine back into production.  It is anticipated that permitting will
cost approximately US$500,000 and is expected to take fifteen to twenty-four months to
complete.  Emgold is confident that it will be able to obtain a Use Permit for the Idaho-
Maryland.  Since the early 1960’s, 37 gold mines have applied for permits in California



and all have been approved and allowed to go into operation.  Since 2002 three gold
mines have received Use Permits to operate in California.

Emgold is developing plans to become a 265,000 to 400,000 ounce per year gold
producer, focused primarily on production from the Idaho-Maryland Mine with a potential
mine life greater than 20 years.  For more information about Emgold and the Idaho-
Maryland Mine please visit the Company's website www.emgold.com or
www.sedar.com.

William J. Witte, P.Eng
President and Chief Executive Officer

For further information please contact:
Coal Harbour Communications

Tel:  (604) 662-4505  Fax: 604-662-4547
Toll Free: 1-877-642-6200

No regulatory authority has approved or disapproved the information contained in this news release.

This release includes certain statements that may be deemed "forward-looking statements". All statements in this
release, other than statements of historical facts, that address future production, reserve potential, exploration
drilling, exploitation activities and events or developments that the Company expects are forward-looking
statements. Although the Company believes the expectations expressed in such forward looking statements are
based on reasonable assumptions, such statements are not guarantees of future performance and actual results
or developments may differ materially from those in the forward-looking statements. Factors that could cause
actual results to differ materially from those in forward-looking statements include market prices, exploitation
and exploration successes, and continued availability of capital and financing, and general economic, market or
business conditions. Investors are cautioned that any such statements are not guarantees of future performance
and that actual results or developments may differ materially from those projected in the forward-looking
statements. For more information on the Company, Investors should review the Company's filings that are
available at www.sedar.com or the Company’s website at www.emgold.com.
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https://www.theunion.com/news/local-news/mill-torn-down-to-make-way-for-development/article_187b46a5-
078b-5ea1-9819-1963908f8f3b.html

Mill torn down to make way for development

By NCS Import
Apr 4, 2003

https://www.googleadservices.com/pagead/aclk?nis=4&sa=L&ai=C8uDRBiWjZPaSIoPb998P-qmO6AqzvceUca6flL-PEWQQASCnisUEYMme7obIo_waoAG08_XLA8gBAqgDAcgDyQSqBMMCT9D4allmpcf3kgCiP_ZuvGuzlNjr2TIWHOJJ-fXPLSwEMWpimR52pzmk8cFPQcoTMO8N5Ja6v_w8Nu5pQ4u05Lw-0NbRFBc2u-GTP6u3WQmxbJt8oI8omiJF5LpxjqEMZjjl5B29cUsH7dzWVz85kgHUz7eCF2UL5lydE6mZey9Yoby2mXN1pYYtTZ_WntWpx428-9Vgro8atIdkjNsmPOkuKCUMpdYuTGue7aWxhwmeQxQ0JL-ZdIh7rtTSJIUWAjJJ1uJMSn0duo8cgurO5stwcCJIgEmuzX51YcdU9YgVmOLn-KePIhoQQNetvXXVkc9_sTc-QD4vts-pQA76pi6NgMCMHVdzxP9Eps5oL8gV8sohNu4EXAPdCZwhmCGqtoCiP5be_Wn8V8xoESrPu39GoIx7f919laiEQqm38hMdODfABM7vv5CdBKAGAoAHtIyKNKgHjs4bqAeT2BuoB-6WsQKoB_6esQKoB6SjsQKoB9XJG6gHpr4bqAeaBqgH89EbqAeW2BuoB6qbsQKoB4OtsQKoB_-esQKoB9-fsQKoB8qpsQKoB-ulsQLYBwHSCBkIgGEQARgeMgKKAjoHgdCAgICABEi9_cE6sQnz7zms7usxt4AKAZgLAcgLAbgMAdoMEQoLENDwooeVw_ij0gESAgEDqg0CVVPYEw3QFQGYFgH4FgGAFwE&ae=1&ase=2&num=1&cid=CAQSPABygQiDlmT--KptVSOPCshpvHWz5OmmEmJYmqi99DvdpgHO3djvVDGJgyr1c9jiFX0enXXizeH-TIuKqRgB&sig=AOD64_3zcTQmMIx3HrgsOjVWhk0vHze6ZQ&client=ca-pub-1168130439607626&rf=2&nb=17&adurl=https://www.dreamgiveaway.com/dg/demon-340%3Fpromo%3DJH2023D5%26gclid%3DEAIaIQobChMI9q3dnabz_wIVg-39BR36lAOtEAEYASAAEgIk9_D_BwE


Kristofer B. WakefieldTim Feller, Sierra Pacific Industries regional manager, checks out the property at Brunswick Road
and East Bennett Street.

The remains of the old Bohemia Mill are being cut, cubed and cleared to make

way for a possible business park and light industrial site.

A Sacramento demolition firm razed five buildings in mid-March, including the

old sawmill at Brunswick Drive and East Bennett Street between Grass Valley

and Cedar Ridge.

After the wood and metal are hauled off to recyclers and the asphalt and

concrete ground up for aggregate, property owner Sierra Pacific Industries plans

to develop a map for the site.



The Redding-based logging giant purchased the 80-acre site in 1992, a year after

the mill closed, because “it came with 35,000 acres of timberland,” said Tim

Feller, SPI’s regional manager in Grass Valley.

“This is the biggest reclamation project of my life,” Feller said, walking around

piles of saw blades, steel beams and corrugated metal roof.

Tom Channell, general manager of Dynamic Demolition of Sacramento, the firm

that is cleaning up the site, said this particular project had a few surprises as

workers uncovered layer after layer of concrete and asphalt and “years of

remodeling.”

Workers will separate wood from metal from concrete, and it all must be

cleaned of red clay, Channell said. Dynamic Demolition handled the demolition

of Mather Air Force Base.

He estimated that 98 percent of the material from the old mill’s structures will

be reused, with the metal, at $50 a ton, being shipped overseas. Feller would not

say what his logging firm will pay for the cleanup work.

Channell’s firm will also tear down the mill’s concrete foundations to leave

something resembling a level site so Grass Valley planning firm SCO

Engineering can develop a map.

“We’re still in the formative stages,” Ed Sylvester, president of SCO Engineering,

said about plans that could include a business park and a light-manufacturing

site. Sylvester said his company would firm up possible uses for the site in

another month.



SPI developed a site plan in 1993, but Canadian mining firm Emperor Gold held

an option on the property for several years, Feller said. Now that the option has

lapsed – the mining company plans to search for gold on the Idaho-Maryland

Mine instead – SPI hopes to revive plans to develop the site, or at least a map,

Feller said.

SCO Engineering is working on a small residential subdivision across East

Bennett Street of about a dozen one-acre lots called Empire Hills, thinking the

housing could be for workers at the new site, Sylvester said.

The 80 acres, zoned light industrial, are assessed at $200,498 on the 2002-03

Nevada County tax rolls. The improvements, now torn down, were valued at

$848,899. Often the assessed value lags behind the market value of land.

In 1992, Nevada County environmental officials and district attorney launched

an investigation to determine if Bohemia Inc., an Oregon-based forest-products

company, allowed as much as 800 gallons of waste oil and used hydraulic oil to

be buried in a wooded area on the Bohemia property in the summer of 1989.

The company admitted negligence and paid $30,000 in penalties. The site has

since been cleaned.
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EMGOLD MINING CORPORATION 
1400 – 570 Granville Street 

Vancouver, B.C.  Canada  V6C 3P1  
www.emgold.com 

 
 
July 21, 2004 Ticker Symbol:  EMR-TSX Venture Exchange 
 SEC 12g3-2(b):  82-3003 
 Standard and Poor's 
 

EMGOLD DISCOVERS NEW ZONES AT THE IDAHO-MARYLAND 

Emgold Mining Corporation (EMR: TSX Venture Exchange) (the “Company”) is pleased to announce results from 
the recently completed Phase II surface core drilling program at the Idaho-Maryland Gold Project located in Grass 
Valley, California.  The primary focus of the surface drilling program was to further define the structural nature of 
the Idaho Deformation Corridor in near surface targets within historically mined areas west of the Idaho No 1 shaft, 
as well as several new locations that have never been mined.  Visible gold was observed in some of the core and 
several unexpected high-grade intercepts were identified.  This phase of drilling successfully confirmed the 
Company’s geologic interpretation and exploration methodology for specific areas of the Idaho-Maryland gold 
deposit.  Several new, high-quality exploration targets were identified, confirming the target-rich structural 
environment present on the Idaho-Maryland.  The Company is reviewing the results of the Phase II surface drill 
program in conjunction with historical data to evaluate the possibility of increased mineral resources and the need 
to initiate a new NI 43-101 Technical Report. 

The twenty-six hole program from two drill sites totaled 18,060 feet and was designed to follow-up the high-grade 
gold intercept in the Idaho 120 Vein (refer to press release – September 16, 2003), and test the entire unexplored 
width of the Idaho Deformation Corridor for new mineralized zones westward from the historic Idaho No. 1 Shaft.  
Coarse visible gold was noted in several drill intercepts and is typical of the historic high-grade gold deposits at the 
Idaho-Maryland Mine. 

TARGETS ALONG WESTERN STRIKE EXTENSION - DRILL SITE A 

Sixteen core holes tested the strike continuity of the Idaho Deformation Corridor westward from historically 
developed areas.  Visible gold was intersected in the new Idaho 250 Vein and step-out drilling was conducted to 
test down-dip and westward from the high-grade intercept in hole IDH001, along the Idaho 120 Vein.  Important 
structural geologic information obtained during this program will help direct future exploration.  The drilling 
continued to provide valuable information regarding ore controls exerted by bench dislocations in the ultramafic – 
metavolcanic contact, along the south boundary of the Idaho Deformation Corridor.  Drilling identified multiple 
large carbonate alteration blooms at depth, which are strong indicators for blind, high-grade shoots, and provide 
excellent targets for future surface and underground drill programs.  A similar carbonate alteration bloom mapped 
at the surface resulted in the discovery of high grade gold in the Idaho 120 Vein reporting 10.1 feet grading 0.93 
ounces of gold per ton (31.9 G/T). 



PARTIAL ASSAY RESULTS FROM DRILL SITE A 

Hole # Interval 
From 

(ft) 

Interval 
To 
(ft) 

Interval 
 

(ft) 

Interval 
 

(m) 

Gold Grade 
 

(oz/ton) 

Gold 
Grade 
(GPT) 

 
Notes 

IDH017 637.5 641.1 3.6 1.10 0.01 0.34  

IDH018 317.0 320.0 3.0 0.91 0.01 0.34  

 368.0 371.0 3.0 0.91 0.01 0.34  

 383.0 386.0 3.0 0.91 0.01 0.34  

IDH019 556.3 562.3 6.0 1.82 0.03 1.03 Visible Au 

IDH020 513.5 517.0 3.5 1.07 0.01 0.34  

IDH021 486.0 489.0 3.0 0.91 0.01 0.34  

IDH022 372.0 375.0 3.0 1.83 0.09 3.08 Visible Au 

 384.0 387.0 3.0 0.91 0.03 1.03  

 420.0 423.0 3.0 0.91 0.01 0.34  

IDH024 395.0 398.0 3.0 0.91 0.31 10.63 Visible Au 

 404.0 407.0 3.0 0.91 0.02 0.69  

IDH029 355.0 358.0 3.0 0.91 0.03 1.03  

 367.0 373.0 6.0 1.83 0.03 1.03  

IDAHO 120 VEIN TARGET (SITE A) 

The Idaho 120 Vein target remains open down-rake to the east and continues to show great promise for hosting a 
significant high-grade gold resource.  Step-out drilling was conducted down-dip and westward from discovery hole 
IDH001 to test the westward extension of the Idaho 120 Vein, and continuity of the deformation corridor.  Holes 
IDH016 through IDH029 targeted this area and successfully traced the Idaho 120 Vein westward, but found it to 
weaken rapidly to the west from the high-grade gold intercept in hole IDH001.  Holes IDH017 through 20 
intersected a very old stope (pre-1908 report) westward and up-dip along the 120 Vein from the IDH001 intercept, 
indicating that an oreshoot 200 feet in height and 200 feet in strike length had been present up-dip and westward.  A 
shallowly-SE raking bench dislocation in the ultramafic – metavolcanic contact along the south side of the corridor 
appears to exert a strong control for this shoot, which is located on the north side of the corridor.  The bench 
dislocation abruptly terminates westward, which marks the west end of the famous one million ounce stope in the 
Idaho 1 Vein and the pinching down of the 120 Vein shoot westward.  The 1 Vein bonanza stope lies directly on 
top of the shallowly-raking bench dislocation.  Similarly, the 120 Vein shoot appears to rake parallel to and above 
the elevation of the bench.  The known 6,000-foot rake length of this bench dislocation indicates great promise for 
continuity in the 120 Vein shoot. 

Step-out drilling along the Idaho 120 Vein and the deformation corridor could only be conducted westward from 
the IDH001 intercept, as angles of incidence to test the zone eastward were very unfavorable.  A new drill site has 
been identified, which would be favorable for drill testing eastward down-rake along the Idaho 120 Vein high-grade 
shoot.  Negotiations to lease this new site and obtain a work permit from the City of Grass Valley will be in 
progress shortly.  It may take approximately 2 to 3 months to obtain the surface-drilling permit from the City to 
initiate a Phase III surface drill program. 



IDAHO 250 VEIN TARGET (SITE A) 

Coarse visible gold was observed in core that cut into the Idaho 250 Vein, a new zone of replacement-type gold 
mineralization hosted in a diabase unit.  The coarse gold mineralization is hosted in an array of thin quartz stringers 
developed along the periphery of a shear zone that diagonally cuts westward through the diabase from hanging wall 
to footwall.  This zone extends westward from the abrupt western termination of the bench dislocation in the 
ultramafic contact and close to the elevation of the bench.  Step-out drilling confirmed the termination of this zone 
upward and along strike in both directions, but the target remains open to depth and will be a target for underground 
exploration. 

TARGETS WEST OF THE IDAHO N° 1 SHAFT  -  DRILL SITE B 

Ten core holes were drilled from Site B to test the entire width of the Idaho Deformation Corridor westward from 
the Idaho No. 1 Shaft.  Visible gold mineralization was intersected at fairly shallow levels in the Idaho 192 Vein, 
up-rake of and west of the historic high-grade stope mined in that structure from 1908-1912.  The 192 Vein was 
intersected in all holes that successfully penetrated through the historic Idaho 1 Vein stope.  Two significant 
carbonate alteration blooms were identified coincident with strong faults on the northern side of the corridor.  Both 
carbonate alteration blooms appeared in the farthest western drilling at Site B, and present good possibilities for 
future high grade gold discoveries along both faults at depth and to the west.  Hole IDH006 targeted a theorized 
shallowly-dipping bench dislocation along the bottom keel of the Brunswick Slab.  The hole was drilled to intersect 
the bench and a possible target at 900 feet vertical depth, but entered a strong carbonate alteration at 1100 feet 
vertical depth.  This indicates that the bench in the contact lies 200 feet deeper and may cover a larger area than 
previously thought.  The target was not reached as the drill rig was at the limits of its capability.  High-grade stopes 
were historically mined within similar structural traps in the Idaho 16 Vein below the 1500 Level.  The structural 
traps along bench dislocations under the keel of the Brunswick Slab continue to remain as promising exploration 
targets for underground exploration. 

PARTIAL ASSAY RESULTS FROM DRILL SITE B  

Hole # Interval 
From 

(ft) 

Interval 
To 
(ft) 

Interval 
 

(ft) 

Interval 
 

(m) 

Gold 
Grade 

 
(oz/ton) 

Gold 
Grade 
(GPT) 

 
Notes 

IDH006 292.0 295.0 3.0 0.91 0.01 0.34  
 592.0 595.0 3.0 0.91 0.02 0.69  
IDH008 126.4 130.0 3.6 1.10 0.06 2.06  
 154.0 157.0 3.0 0.91 0.01 0.34  
 160.0 163.0 3.0 0.91 0.01 0.34  
 163.0 166.0 3.0 0.91 0.03 1.03  
IDH009 130.8 133.8 3.0 0.91 0.17 5.83  
 184.0 187.0 3.0 0.91 0.03 1.03  
 187.0 193.0 6.0 1.83 0.17 5.83 Visible Au 

including 187.0 190.0 3.0 0.91 0.25 8.57  
IDH010 154.8 158.8 4.0 1.22 0.04 1.37  
 222.0 228.5 6.5 1.98 0.02 0.69  
 247.5 250.4 2.9 0.88 0.03 1.03  
IDH011 170.0 173.0 3.0 0.91 0.01 0.34  
 213.0 219.0 6.0 1.83 0.17 5.83  
IDH012 114.7 118.0 3.3 1.01 0.04 1.37  
IDH013 145.0 149.0 4.0 1.22 0.02 0.69  
 165.7 172.3 6.6 2.01 0.01 0.34  
IDH014 258.0 267.0 9.0 2.74 0.02 0.69  



Hole # Interval 
From 

(ft) 

Interval 
To 
(ft) 

Interval 
 

(ft) 

Interval 
 

(m) 

Gold 
Grade 

 
(oz/ton) 

Gold 
Grade 
(GPT) 

 
Notes 

IDH015 251.2 255.0 3.8 1.16 0.04 0.34  
 286.0 291.5 5.5 1.68 0.02 0.69  
 318.0 321.0 3.0 0.91 0.01 0.34  

PROPOSED PHASE III SURFACE DRILLING PROGRAM 

Plans are being developed to conduct a third phase of surface core drilling to: (1) expand the 120 Vein zone 
eastward down-rake, (2) investigate a bench dislocation in the ultramafic contact from Drill Site D, south of the 
Idaho no. 2 Shaft, and (3) test the entire width of the Idaho Deformation Corridor in the undeveloped area west of 
the Idaho no. 2 Shaft.  The bench dislocation near Site D was mapped at the surface and may be a continuation of 
the Brunswick 11 Vein, an important umbrella-like structure potentially with high-grade gold mineralization in the 
eastern part of the Idaho-Maryland deposit. 

The Idaho-Maryland exploration programs are planned and supervised by Mr. Mark Payne, California Registered 
Geologist Number 7067, Chief Geologist for the Idaho-Maryland Project and “Qualified Person” for the purpose of 
National Instrument 43-101, “Standards of Disclosure for Mineral Projects”.  The Company’s geological staff, with 
review and verification by Mr. Payne, performed the data compilation for the surface core-drilling program.  The 
Company has implemented a quality assurance/quality control program to ensure sampling and analyses of all drill 
cores is conducted in accordance with the best possible exploration industry practices, and conforms to National 
Instrument 43-101.  The drill cores are logged, sampled, and stored in a secure facility near the project site.  All 
cores were of HQ-size to maximize core recovery a sample size.  Surface core drilling over the past year on this 
project has been done primarily to better delineate existing gold resources in preparation for extensive drilling from 
a future underground drilling program. 

A tabulated list of drill hole data and assay results in conjunction with maps and other geologic information will be 
posted on Emgold’s website after all of the assays and check assays have been received and evaluated.  For more 
information about Emgold, the Idaho-Maryland Project and the Ceramext™ process please visit 
http://www.emgold.com/ or http://www.sedar.com/. 

 
William J. Witte, P.Eng  

President and Chief Executive Officer 
 

For further information please contact: 
Mark Feeney, Investor Relations  

Tel:  (604) 687-4622  Fax:  (604) 687-4212 
Email:  info@emgold.com 

No regulatory authority has approved or disapproved the information contained in this news release. 
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EMGOLD PREPARES TO GO UNDERGROUND  
AT THE IDAHO-MARYLAND GOLD MINE 

 
Following an extensive review of the NI 43-101 Preliminary Assessment Technical Report prepared 
by AMEC Americas Limited (see News Release dated November 23, 2004) management and the 
board of directors of Emgold Mining Corporation (EMR-TSX-V) (“Emgold”) have developed a 
business plan aimed specifically at accelerating underground exploration and development of the 
Company’s Idaho-Maryland Gold Mine, California’s second largest historical underground gold 
producer.  In order to initiate underground exploration and development, the Company is applying 
for a Conditional Mine Use Permit that will include the dewatering of the existing Idaho-Maryland 
Gold Mine workings and the construction of an access ramp for underground exploration and 
possible future staged mine production.  Should sufficient gold be discovered during the initial 
exploration stage, Emgold would consider toll milling to recover gold at an earlier stage of 
development.  The additional cost of toll milling would be offset by the significantly lower capital 
requirements of an integrated processing facility than building a stand alone gold plant. 
 
The Idaho-Maryland Gold Mine, discovered in 1851, produced gold from 1862 through 1956 with 
recorded production of 2,383,000 ounces of gold from 5,546,000 short tons for a recovered grade of 
0.43 ounces of gold per short ton (opt).  The maximum annual production rate at the mine was 
138,000 ounces of gold per year with a five-year output (1937-1941) that averaged 119,000 ounces 
of gold per year.  Based on the extensive data available about the mine and using modern computer 
modeling, Emgold believes that the Idaho-Maryland still has the potential to exceed the production 
of its famous neighbor, Newmont’s Empire Mine which produced 6 million ounces of gold.  
 
The Idaho-Maryland is located in the Grass Valley Mining District which bears structural and 
historic gold production similarities to the prolific Red Lake District of Ontario, Canada.  Both 
districts host large, high-grade gold deposits dominating district production and important high-
grade targets which are blind and do not outcrop, requiring exploration and development from 
underground locations.  Grass Valley District gold production (1851-1956) was over 13 million 
ounces from 25 million tons with a recovered grade of 0.52 opt, compared with Red Lake District 
production (1930s – present) of 18 million ounces from 27.7 million tons at 0.65 opt.  The gold 
deposits of Grass Valley and Red Lake are strikingly similar on a district-scale and the importance 
of the geologic features in identifying major gold deposits is only now being recognized by the gold 
mining industry.  
 
The three largest, bonanza-grade greenstone-hosted oreshoots known are the historic Idaho-
Maryland’s No. 1 Vein oreshoot in the Grass Valley District, the Main Shoot in the High Grade 
Zone of the Red Lake District, and the Oroya Oreshoot at the Golden Mile, Kalgoorlie.  These 
contained 1 million, 1.5 million, and 3 million ounces gold respectively, from continuous bodies 
exceeding 1 opt in grade.   Emgold has identified 26 conceptual exploration targets at the Idaho-
Maryland that have similar potential to these oreshoots and is therefore planning systematic 
underground exploration of these targets.  
 



 
- 2 - 

 
Emgold is also planning to explore the extension of the Idaho-Maryland to greater depths once 
there is access underground.  Most of the conceptual exploration targets are between the 600 and 
3,280 levels and the historic information indicates that the Idaho-Maryland can be extended from 
the existing 3,280 level to below the 5,000 level.  In addition, the Company has significant 
information about 55 production targets identified at the time the mine closed in 1956 that make up 
part of 200 “step out” resource blocks available for additional underground exploration that are 
separate from the 26 targets. 
 
Currently the Idaho-Maryland has Measured and Indicated Gold Resources of 1,666,000 tons 
grading 0.28 opt containing 472,000 ounces of gold and an Inferred Gold Resource of 2,526,000 
tons grading 0.38 opt containing 952,000 ounces of gold.  These gold resources were presented in 
the recent NI 43-101 Preliminary Assessment Technical Report and are based on the historic Mine 
Call Factor of 1.44 as defined in the report. 
 
Development of the Ceramext™ Process by Emgold’s wholly owned subsidiary, Golden Bear 
Ceramics Company will continue, as it is viewed as having the potential to significantly reduce the 
effective cost of gold production at the Idaho-Maryland and to mitigate the environmental impact of 
the operation.  The current NI 43-101 Preliminary Assessment Technical Report defines the 
Measured and Indicated Ceramic Feedstock Resources at 171.5 million tons for the Idaho-Maryland 
which could provide adequate ceramic feedstock for the anticipated life of the gold mine.  While 
there can be no assurance that commercial exploitation of the Ceramext™ technology will be 
feasible (see Emgold news release of November 23, 2004), if the Company’s efforts are successful 
this technology could contribute to make the Idaho-Maryland Gold Mine one of the lowest cost 
gold producers in the world. 
 
For more information about Emgold, the Idaho-Maryland Project, the Ceramext™ Process, the 
Stewart, Rozan and Jazz Properties in British Columbia, please visit http://www.emgold.com or 
http://www.sedar.com.   
 

On behalf of the Board of Directors 
 

William J. Witte, P.Eng. 
President and Chief Executive Officer 

 
For further information please contact: 

Mark Feeney, Investor Relations  
Tel:  (604) 687-4622  Fax:  (604) 687-4212 

Email: info@emgold.com 

 
No regulatory authority has approved or disapproved the information contained in this news release. 
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Emgold Identifies High-Grade Exploration Targets at the Idaho-Maryland Mine 

 
Emgold Mining Corporation (EMR-TSX-V) (the “Company”) is pleased to report that new high-grade gold 
exploration targets have been identified from historic mine maps and other geologic data at the Company’s 
Idaho-Maryland Mine underground gold project located in Grass Valley, California. 

Company geologists are constructing a three-dimensional computer model from the historic data collected 
during the time the Idaho-Maryland Mine was an active mining operation from 1851 to 1956. When completed, 
this comprehensive model will include geologic units, faults, veins, underground workings, assays and gold 
resources developed from historic data, and geologic information from Emgold’s two surface drilling programs. 
The data, which includes 220,000 feet of historic core drilling, 24,800 feet of Emgold core drilling, 36,000 
assays, and 4,000 mine maps, is being digitized and entered into the MineSight® three-dimensional modeling 
software program.  

As part of this modeling Company’s geologists have input historical assay data into the MineSight® modeling 
package. The geologists are now able to evaluate the historical information using an assay model built from the 
historic mine data. The information for this model comes from fire assays from sampling of underground 
workings and core drilling, which was a routine part of mine development during the historic operations. It is 
anticipated that additional near surface and deeper underground exploration targets may be identified as this 
work process continues. All work is under the supervision of Mr. Robert Pease, Professional Geologist 
(California), Chief Geologist for the Idaho-Maryland Project and a Qualified Person in accordance with 
National Instrument 43-101. 

The assay modeling using the historic data from the northeast portion of the Idaho-Maryland Mine property has 
revealed new high grade gold intercepts in the vicinity of existing gold resource blocks in workings just 600 to 
850 feet below the ground surface. The resource blocks and high-grade intercepts are in a geologically 
favourable area in the Idaho Deformation Zone comprised of faults and veins surrounding diabase rock slabs. 
The intercepts are situated within the historically productive Idaho 3 and 13 veins, and ranges of some of the 
high grades are shown in the table below. The sample lengths presented in the table are the product of the 
historical data collection methods and do not indicate total vein width. The historical information indicates that 
the actual vein  widths in the Idaho Maryland are generally wider than this table would indicate. It is important 
to note that this assay data is historical in nature, does not comply with NI 43-101 and that further 
exploration is required to verify the accuracy of this data and the data should not be relied upon for 
investment purposes. The Company believes this information is useful as an indication of the exploration 
potential of the Idaho-Maryland project and is planning additional surface and underground exploration to 
further define its understanding of the historic ore body as well as other new targets identified from the 
modeling activities. 
 

Mine Level Sample Length 
(feet) 

Gold Assay (ounce 
per ton) 

Comments 

Id600L 1.50 2.25 Historic drift assay 
Id750L  1.80 16.00 Historic drift assay 
Id750L 1.25 10.45 Historic drift assay 
Id750L 1.33 2.45 Historic drift assay 
Id800L 0.66 1.58 Historic drift assay 
Id800R 0.83 2.40 Historic raise assay 

Id850L-DDH2 8.99 0.71 Historic drill hole 



Historic sampling on the Idaho 750-foot level had a weighted average gold grade of 4.5 ounces per ton over a 
sampled distance of 25 feet, which is well above the historical average production grade from the Idaho-
Maryland mine of 0.43 ounce per short ton. These high-grade assays are in areas where stoping did not occur, 
and therefore remain available as exploration targets. The sample results in the above table are raw assays not 
using the historic mine call factor of 1.44, and are not cut. It is also important to note that based on the 
Company’s most recent NI 43-101 Preliminary Assessment Technical Report on the Idaho-Maryland Mine 
(dated November 22, 2004), the average true thickness of veins within the Idaho-Maryland range from 8.1 ft to 
70.7 ft and are in general not narrow veins.  

A proposed surface-drilling program is being planned to explore for gold on several of these identified targets.  
Nine diamond core drill holes are being considered, which would total 7,200 feet. These holes would be drilled 
from one or two sites, with individual hole depths being less than 1000 feet. Three holes would test the Idaho 87 
resource-block area and six holes would explore the high-grade intercepts in the Round Hole area. Property 
leases and a conditional use permit issued by the City of Grass Valley will be required in order to start this 
program. The historic information and views of the proposed surface drilling program are illustrated on the 
Company’s website at www.emgold.com.  

Since the mine workings are not accessible, Idaho-Maryland geologists have not verified the sample intercepts, 
but the historic assay map data is felt to be reliable. These intercepts would be tested in the future once the 
planned underground exploration and development program is begun. The objective of the underground 
exploration program will be to confirm and expand the gold resources primarily through diamond core drilling 
and sampling. The proposed decline access ramp will be aligned in an easterly direction that brings it near to 
existing gold resource blocks. As the decline is advanced, muck bays positioned approximately every 500 feet in 
the decline will be available to use as underground drilling stations. Resource blocks as defined in the 
Company’s current Technical Report and other exploration targets will be drilled, sampled and assayed, and the 
results entered into the MineSight® model. 

For more information about Emgold, its Rozan, Stewart and Jazz Properties in British Columbia; the Idaho-
Maryland Mine project in California and the Ceramext™ technology, please visit www.emgold.com or 
www.sedar.com. 

William J. (Bill) Witte, P.Eng. 
President and Chief Executive Officer 

 
For further information please contact: 

Michael O’Connor, Manager, Investor Relations  
Tel:  (604) 687-4622  Fax:  (604) 687-4212  Email: info@emgold.com 

 
The TSX Venture Exchange has reviewed the information contained in this news release. 

 

This news release includes certain statements that may be deemed "forward-looking statements.”   All statements in this release, other than statements of historical facts, 
that address future production, reserve potential, exploration drilling, exploitation activities and events or developments that the Company expects are forward-looking 
statements. Although the Company believes the expectations expressed in such forward-looking statements are based on reasonable assumptions, such statements are not 
guarantees of future performance and actual results or developments may differ materially from those in the forward-looking statements. Factors that could cause actual 
results to differ materially from those in forward-looking statements include market prices, exploitation and exploration successes, and continued availability of capital and 
financing, and general economic, market or business conditions. Investors are cautioned that any such statements are not guarantees of future performance and those 
actual results or developments may differ materially from those projected in the forward-looking statements. For more information on the Company, investors should 
review the Company's filings that are available at www.sedar.com or the Company’s website at www.emgold.com. 



EXHIBIT 299 

   



 

EMGOLD MINING CORPORATION 
Suite 1400 – 570 Granville Street 

Vancouver, B.C.  V6C 3P1 
www.emgold.com  

 
February 1, 2007 TSX Venture Exchange:    EMR 
 OTC Bulletin Board:         EGMCF 
 U.S. 20-F Registration:       000-51411 
 Frankfurt Stock Exchange: EML     

 
EMGOLD MINING ANNOUNCES REVISED TERMS TO THE LEASE AND  

OPTION TO PURCHASE AGREEMENT FOR THE IDAHO-MARYLAND MINE 
 
Emgold Mining Corporation (EMR-TSX Venture) (the “Company” or “Emgold”) is pleased to 
announce that the Company has negotiated an extension to the Mining Lease and Option to 
Purchase Agreement for the Idaho-Maryland Mine located in Grass Valley, California.  The revised 
agreement extends the purchase option exercise date from May 31, 2007, to December 31, 2008.  
As part of the revised agreement all other conditions of the original Option and Lease Agreement, 
including the option purchase price and net smelter royalty remain unchanged.  Emgold has agreed 
to a quarterly option payment of US$75,000 beginning on May 1, 2007, and continuing for the term 
of the revised lease.  A one-time extension payment of US$75,000 was paid upon execution of the 
revised agreement, in addition to the last remaining option payment of US$25,500 payable as of 
today’s date. 

“We are very pleased that the owners of the Idaho-Maryland Mine agreed to the extension of the 
purchase option date to December 31, 2008,” said Bill Witte, President and CEO of Emgold Mining 
Corporation.  “The revised option agreement will provide Emgold with greater financing discretion 
and flexibility as the Company completes the permitting process and commences the development 
of the Idaho-Maryland Mine.” 

It is anticipated that the Conditional Mine Use Permit may be granted by the end of 2007.   
Subsequent activities in 2008 at the Idaho-Maryland, the second largest historical underground gold 
mine in California, will include de-watering the mine and driving a new decline to allow for 
extensive underground exploration drilling intended to significantly increase the current gold 
resource.  

William J. (Bill) Witte, P.Eng. 
President and Chief Executive Officer 

For further information please contact: 
Michael O’Connor, Manager, Investor Relations 

Tel:  (604) 687-4622  Fax:  (604) 687-4212 
Email: info@emgold.com 

 
No regulatory authority has approved or disapproved the information contained in this news release. 
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Emgold Mining Announces Inferred Resources At  

The Idaho-Maryland Mine Surpasses One Million Ounces  
 
Emgold Mining Corporation (EMR - TSX-V) ("Emgold” or the “Company") is pleased to report that 
the total inferred mineral resources at the Idaho-Maryland Mine in Grass Valley, California, have now 
surpassed one million ounces of contained gold.  The inferred total resource using the historic Mine Call 
Factor (“MCF”) of 1.44 includes 43,000 tons (“t”) with an average grade of 0.93 ounces of gold per ton 
(“opt”) to contain 40,000 ounces of contained gold.  An additional 5,000t grading 2.05 opt increases the 
total inferred contained gold to 1,002,000 ounces of contained gold.  The mine also has a measured and 
indicated resource consisting of 1,666,000t grading 0.28 opt using the MCF to contain 472,000 contained 
ounces as presented in the Company’s November 2004 Technical Report prepared by Amec Americas 
Ltd.  All resources are summarized in the table below. 

Sixteen new gold resource blocks have been identified using the Company’s computerized models 
increasing the total number of resource blocks to 216.  Each of the 216 resource blocks is a target for 
further surface and underground exploration.  Approximately 70 percent of the new resources are from 
primary veins including the Idaho #1 Vein, which produced one million ounces of gold from one million 
tons over 30 years, and the Idaho #3 Vein.  These veins show remarkable continuity down-dip; 
continuous structures that were mined to depths of over 2000 feet.  In addition, the majority of the new 
inferred resources were identified at the deeper levels of the mine where historic mine operations 
excavated drifts in veins and detailed sampling was conducted to plan future mining activities.  Mining of  
the veins between the drifts (termed stoping) never occurred because stoping of primary and secondary 
veins essentially ended at the Idaho 2000 mine level.  However, the mine levels below the 2000 level 
were developed and sampled in preparation for future mining. 

Computer modeling of historic assay data was completed last year and is being used to determine the sites 
of potential new resource blocks and exploration targets.  In addition to the new resources, more than two 
hundred new exploration targets have been found.  Most targets are along extensions of existing veins.  
The exploration targets do not meet the vein thickness criteria required to be classified as resource blocks, 
but these areas do indicate the presence of gold mineralization and will be very important guides to 
identify additional gold resources in the future.  All work is under the supervision of Mr. Robert Pease, 
Professional Geologist (California), Chief Geologist for the Idaho-Maryland Project and a Qualified 
Person in accordance with National Instrument 43-101. 

In a Preliminary Assessment Technical Report published in 2004, AMEC reviewed and updated the 
requirements for establishing mineral resources at Idaho-Maryland Mine.  Some of the original criteria 
are: 

a) the blocks must have a minimum true thickness of 3 feet, 

b) the cutoff grade is 0.1 ounce per ton of gold, and 

c) the resource blocks are limited to certain length and height dimensions. 



The updated requirements that have been applied to these new resources are: 

a) the mine call factor can be used on all resources derived from sampling of development drifts, 

b) the mine call factor cannot be used on any resource blocks developed from drillhole data, and 

c) resources are to be reported using uncapped gold grades. 

The following table is a summary of all mineral resources, including the new ones, for the Idaho-
Maryland project. 

 
Idaho-Maryland Project Gold Mineral Resource Summary Update, 23 February 2007 

 
True Thickness 

(ft) 
Tonnage 

(tons) 
Gold Grade 

(oz/ton) 
Gold 
(oz) 

Gold Grade 
(oz/ton) 

1.44 MCF 

Gold 
(oz) 

1.44 MCF1 

Eureka Group 2      
 Measured Mineral Resource 6.5 17,000 0.18 3,000 0.29 5,000 
 Indicated Mineral Resource 5.7 41,000 0.27 11,000 0.37 15,000 
Measured + Indicated Mineral Resources 5.9 58,000 0.24 14,000 0.34 20,000 
Inferred Mineral Resources A 9.0 393,000 0.21 81,000 0.30 117,000 
Inferred Mineral Resources B 4.8 49,000 0.37 18,000 - - 
New Inferred Mineral Resources (A) 4.4 5,000  0.15 1,000  0.22        1,000 
Idaho Group       
 Measured Mineral Resource 17.5 129,000 0.24 31,000 0.34 44,000 
 Indicated Mineral Resource 10.6 209,000 0.42 88,000 0.60 125,000 
Measured + Indicated Mineral Resources 13.3 338,000 0.35 119,000 0.50 169,000 
Inferred Mineral Resources  10.0 838,000 0.25 212,000 0.37 307,000 
New Inferred Mineral Resources (A) 4.1  38,000  0.71  27,000  1.02 39,000  
Dorsey Group       
 Measured Mineral Resource 11.6 61,000 0.23 14,000 0.33 20,000 
 Indicated Mineral Resource 6.4 131,000 0.33 43,000 0.46 60,000 
Measured + Indicated Mineral Resources 8.0 192,000 0.30 57,000 0.42 80,000 
Inferred Mineral Resources  9.5 955,000 0.30 288,000 0.43 413,000 
New Inferred Mineral Resources (B) 3.0 5,000  2.05  10,000  -  - 
Brunswick Group       
 Measured Mineral Resource 8.0 64,000 0.17 11,000 0.25 16,000 
 Indicated Mineral Resource 6.2 108,000 0.28 30,000 0.40 43,000 
Measured + Indicated Mineral Resources 6.9 172,000 0.24 41,000 0.34 59,000 
Inferred Mineral Resources  7.3 291,000 0.23 67,000 0.33 97,000 
Waterman Group       
 Measured Mineral Resource 70.7 831,000 0.15 127,000 - - 
 Indicated Mineral Resource 30.5 75,000 0.21 16,000 - - 
Measured + Indicated Mineral Resources 67.3 906,000 0.16 144,000 - - 
Idaho-Maryland Project 3       
 Measured Mineral Resource 1 13.3 271,000 0.22 59,000 0.31 85,000 
 Measured Mineral Resource 2 70.7 831,000 0.15 127,000 0.15 127,000 
 Indicated Mineral Resource 8.1 489,000 0.35 172,000 0.50 243,000 
Measured + Indicated Mineral Resources 41.1 1,666,000 0.22 375,000 0.28 472,000 
Inferred Mineral Resources  9.3 2,526,000 0.26 666,000 0.38 952,000 
New Inferred Mineral Resources A 4.2 42,000 0.65 27,000 0.94 40,000 
New Inferred Mineral Resources B 3.0 5,000 2.05 10,000 2.05 10,000 
Inferred Mineral Resources Total 4.0 2,573,000 0.27 703,000 0.39 1,002,000 

1. MCF = Mine Call Factor (not applicable to Waterman Group resources).  2. Inferred resources are divided into A (historic data 
and mine call factor applied) and B (from 2003-2004 data and no mine call factor applied).  3. Idaho-Maryland measured resources 
are split into two categories: 1. the Eureka, Idaho, Dorsey, and Brunswick Groups, and 2. the Waterman Group (stockwork/slate 
type ore).  4. New inferred resources include 40,000 ounces with MCF (A), and 10,000 without MCF (B). 

The November 2004 Technical Report defines the Mine Call Factor (“MCF”) used in determining the 
gold grade based on historical assay data for the Idaho-Maryland Mine.  Historically, the planned mill 
feed tonnage and gold grade rarely matched the actual results.  This was a result of a variety of factors 
that could be resolved by adjusting the planned production by a constant number.  This number or factor 
is called the multiplier factor or mine call factor.  Commonly, deposit types like the Idaho-Maryland 
typically under-predict the gold produced.  The report also states, "Two factors were calculated: a 
"model" (underground sampling) to "mine" (muck car sampling) factor, equal to 1.21, and a "mine" to 
"mill" factor, calculated to be 1.19. The total Mine Call Factor is equal to 1.44.  AMEC reviewed the 



work done by James Askew and Associates and agrees with their results.  The use of the Mine Call Factor 
can be used to establish a relationship between the historic underground channel samples and expected 
production.  This factor should only be used on the nuggety vein system data.  The more homogeneous 
slate-hosted mineralization should not be factored at any resource category." 

It is important to note that this assay data is historical in nature, and further exploration is required to 
verify the accuracy of this data.  The Company believes this information is useful as an indication of the 
exploration potential of the Idaho-Maryland project and is planning additional surface and underground 
exploration to further define its understanding of the historic mineralization as well as other new targets 
identified from the modeling activities. 

Since the mine workings are currently not accessible, as the mine is flooded, Idaho-Maryland geologists 
have not verified the sample results used to delineate these resource blocks, but the historic assay map 
data is felt to be a reliable indicator that the veins are open along strike and dip.  These gold resource 
blocks will be tested in the future once the planned underground exploration and development program 
has commenced at the Idaho-Maryland. 

Underground exploration of the 216 resource blocks and 200 exploration targets should commence after 
the Company receives its Conditional Mine Use Permit from the City of Grass Valley.  In June 2006, 
Idaho-Maryland Mining Corporation (“IMMC”) successfully completed Phase 1 of the three-phase 
process to permit the reopening of the Idaho-Maryland Mine.  Phase 1 included the completion of the 
Master Environmental Assessment (“MEA”) as part of the California Environmental Quality Act.  Based 
on public input during the MEA process, advances in the Ceramext™ technology used to make stone and 
ceramic tile products from the mine waste, plus advances in computer modeling of the historic Idaho-
Maryland Mine geology and assay data, IMMC has been revising its permit application prior to entering 
Phase 2 of the permitting process referred to as the Initial Study.  This will be followed by Phase 3, the 
EIR process, expected to commence in the summer of 2007 and may be completed in early 2008. 

For more information about Emgold, the Stewart, Rozan and Jazz Properties in British Columbia, the 
Idaho-Maryland Project and the Ceramext™ process, please visit www.emgold.com or www.sedar.com. 

On behalf of the Board of Directors, 

William J. (Bill) Witte, P.Eng. 
President and Chief Executive Officer 

 
For further information please contact: 

Michael O'Connor, Manager, Investor Relations 
Tel: (604) 687-4622 Fax: (604) 687-4212 

Email: info@emgold.com 
 

No regulatory authority has approved or disapproved the information contained in this news release. 
 

This news release includes certain statements that may be deemed "forward -looking statements". All statements in this release, other than 
statements of historical facts, that address future production, reserve potential, exploration drilling, exploitation activities and events or 
developments that the Company expects are forward -looking statements. Although the Company believes the expectations expressed in such 
forward looking statements are based on reasonable assumptions, such statements are not guarantees of future performance and actual results or 
developments may differ materially from those in the forward-looking statements. Factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from 
those in forward-looking statements include market prices, exploitation and exploration successes, and continued availability of capital and 
financing, and general economic, market or business conditions. Investors are cautioned that any such statements are not guarantees of future 
performance and that actual results or developments may differ materially from those projected in the forward -looking statements. For more 
information on the Company, Investors should review the Company's filings that are available at www.sedar.com or the Company's website at 
www.emgold.com. 




